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          1  CIVIL SERVICE AND LABOR AND PUBLIC SAFETY

          2                 CHAIRPERSON ADDABBO: Good morning.

          3  That was a good response. We usually don't get that,

          4  so that's good.

          5                 Good morning. Thanks for being here

          6  today on today's hearing of both the Civil Service

          7  and Labor Committee and Public Safety. My name is

          8  Joe Addabbo. I Chair the Public -- Civil Service and

          9  Labor Committee -- because I have been called Peter

         10  Vallone in the past. And joining us today, a good

         11  colleague of mine, Peter Vallone, Jr., Chair of the

         12  Public Safety Committee.

         13                 Today the Committees will have an

         14  oversight hearing discussing the recruitment and

         15  retention issues regarding the City School Crossing

         16  Guards and the School Safety Agents. There should

         17  never be a concern for child safety on the way to

         18  school or while in school, and safety in relation to

         19  our schools is of utmost importance for our

         20  students, our teachers, our staff, the

         21  administrators, it is a primary concern for the

         22  Council today and always.

         23                 It is the responsibility of both the

         24  Department of Ed and NYPD to work together to

         25  provide a safe environment in and around our
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          2  schools, and Crossing Guards and Safety Agents play

          3  a very crucial role ensuring such safety.

          4                 While Crossing Guards are employees

          5  of the NYPD, they are not considered members of the

          6  police force. Close to over 2,000 in number Crossing

          7  Guards are assigned to watch over both public and

          8  private school areas, work in a maximum of 20 hours

          9  a week and earn approximately $10 an hour, which in

         10  turn is approximately $12,000 a year.

         11                 School safety agents are also

         12  employees of the NYPD. And earlier this year, after

         13  a hearing on the issue in this Committee, the Labor

         14  Committee, for the first time Safety Agents were

         15  classified as a competitive civil service title.

         16  Over 5,000 Safety Agents are responsible for school

         17  patrols, identity verification, removal of

         18  unauthorized individuals, intervention in

         19  altercations, confiscate weapons and other items,

         20  effect arrest and transport individuals to booking

         21  facilities. They do all of this for a starting

         22  salary of approximately $26,000 a year.

         23                 We will discuss why, from 2002 to

         24  2007 there has been a 50 percent turnover rate in

         25  the Safety Agents and approximately roughly 40 a
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          2  month leave.

          3                 Today's joint hearing seeks to

          4  explore what factors contribute to the difficulties

          5  of recruitment and low retention rates, morale,

          6  safety impacts on the City, financial budget impact

          7  of these issues, and what we can do to increase

          8  interest and stability in these positions.

          9                 Our children and those authorized to

         10  be in and around our schools deserve the safest

         11  environment that they can have and we are going to

         12  work on that today.

         13                 And just as a side note, we were

         14  talking earlier, I still remember my School Crossing

         15  Guard. You know, it will be next year 30 years that

         16  I've graduated from my elementary school, and I

         17  still remember Bernadette, who passed away not too

         18  long ago, but you never forget your School Crossing

         19  Guard, and of course, our Safety Agents also do a

         20  very fine job.

         21                 So, again, I thank you all for being

         22  here. I want to thank my staff of the Civil Service

         23  and Labor Committee who helped put this hearing

         24  together. To my left here, Elisa Chae, Legal

         25  Counsel; Shauneequa Owusu. Shauneequa's first
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          2  hearing for the Labor Committee today. She's our

          3  Policy Analyst.

          4                 I'd like to thank Sarah Brannen, our

          5  Investigations Policy Analyst; Andy Grossman, our

          6  Financial Analyst; and Steve Presser from Member

          7  Services.

          8                 We will introduce colleagues as they

          9  appear, but at this time I'd like to welcome

         10  Chairman Peter Vallone, Jr., from the Public Safety

         11  Committee, to give a statement as well.

         12                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE: Thank you.

         13                 Good morning.

         14                 AUDIENCE PARTICIPANTS:  Good morning.

         15                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE: You didn't put

         16  them to sleep. They're still with us.

         17                 I want to thank Council Member

         18  Addabbo. It's my pleasure to be working with him as

         19  Co-chairing this Committee, and he was the force

         20  behind this hearing, yet these are issues that were

         21  touched upon and I know many of you have been with

         22  us during some Public Safety Committee hearings in

         23  the past, Ray Kelly has testified about these

         24  issues, but they deserve their own special hearing

         25  together with Joe's Committee. So, I'm glad we're
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          2  here today. You know, as Public Safety Chair, as a

          3  member of the Education Committee, but most

          4  important as a parent of two girls in the public

          5  school system, there is nothing more important to me

          6  than the safety of children while they're in school.

          7                 My daughters are now both in junior

          8  high, and I learned, like many other parents, that

          9  you don't quality for a bus, a school bus once you

         10  pass the sixth grade. And, so, now they are taking

         11  public buses but more importantly to this hearing,

         12  walking to and from those bus stops alone, without

         13  me picking them up everyday, and it's scary. And

         14  that's why it's so important, the work that is done,

         15  not just inside the schools but outside the schools.

         16  You know, school safety does not begin and end

         17  inside of the school doors, and we do a great job of

         18  keeping our kids safe in side schools, but we need

         19  to keep them safe on the buses, on the way to the

         20  buses, walking down the streets, and we can never do

         21  enough and that's why we're here today.

         22                 So, I want to thank my staff also. I

         23  think everyone on my Committee has been thanked

         24  except Liz Dubin, and Jennine Ventura, who are next

         25  to me, and without further ado, I guess we'll turn
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          2  the floor over to you. I'll go back to Joe first.

          3                 CHAIRPERSON ADDABBO: Let me just

          4  announce who the first panel is, and before I do, I

          5  just want to note that Council Member Gennaro was

          6  here briefly. He is Chair of our Environmental

          7  Committee. He is Chair of the Environmental

          8  Committee and he is starting a hearing across the

          9  street. So, again, we want to thank Councilman

         10  Gennaro for showing up here briefly.

         11                 The first panel representing the

         12  NYPD, we have Assistant Commissioner Arnold

         13  Wechsler; we have Susan Petito, Assistant

         14  Commissioner; Director of Patrol Operations Ramon

         15  Garcia; and we have Captain Daniel Mulligan. That

         16  should be the panel here. And, again, I want to

         17  thank all for being here today on this issue and

         18  please just state your name and give your testimony.

         19                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER WECHSLER:

         20  Well, good morning, Chairman Addabbo, Chairman

         21  Vallone, and members of the Council. I am Assistant

         22  Commissioner Arnold S. Wechsler of the NYPD's

         23  Employee Management Division. I am joined by Captain

         24  Daniel Mulligan, Executive Officer of the Resource

         25  Management Section of the Patrol Services Bureau;
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          2  and Director Ramon Garcia, in charge of Patrol

          3  Operations for the School Safety Division.

          4                 On behalf of Police Commissioner

          5  Raymond Kelly, we would like to thank you for this

          6  opportunity to speak to you about School Crossing

          7  Guards and School Safety Agents.

          8                 We would like first to point out that

          9  the role played by a School Crossing Guard is very

         10  different from the role played by a School Safety

         11  Agent, even though both function within a school

         12  environment.

         13                 Last week, in the course of a joint

         14  oversight hearing on School Safety held by the

         15  Council's Committees on Public Safety, Education and

         16  Juvenile Justice, there was extensive discussion of

         17  the position of School Safety Agent. Therefore, some

         18  of the information which we will provide today will

         19  be familiar to those who attended last Wednesday's

         20  hearing.

         21                 School Safety Agents, or SSAs, are

         22  civilian employees assigned to the Department's

         23  School Safety Division. There are 4,899 School

         24  Safety Agents currently assigned to the School

         25  Safety Division within a rank structure consisting
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          2  of seven levels. The majority of School Safety

          3  Agents are in the entry level position of SSA Level

          4  1, with the primary duty of patroling designated

          5  areas in and around schools and taking enforcement

          6  action for violations of law where necessary.

          7                 Agents assigned to the next high

          8  level, School Safety Agent Level 2, conduct directed

          9  patrols in and around schools, respond to incidents

         10  and perform scanning duties.

         11                 School Safety Agent Level 3, commonly

         12  referred to as group leader is the first line

         13  supervisory role responsible for the supervision of

         14  School Safety Agents Level 1 and 2.

         15                 The success of supervisory and

         16  managerial levels carry even greater

         17  responsibilities, involving not only supervision of

         18  staff, but also diverse duties such as training,

         19  community contact, devising strategies and

         20  initiatives to address crime and disorder in

         21  schools, and maintaining relationships with

         22  Department of Education personnel, parent

         23  associations and patrol personnel.

         24                 The highest level, Director of Patrol

         25  Operations, is held by Director Garcia.
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          2  Approximately 70 percent of School Safety Agents are

          3  women, and approximately 95 percent are black or

          4  Hispanic. We are fortunate in having had a constant

          5  stream of applications for the position of School

          6  Safety Agent with hundreds of resumes on file. There

          7  has been no difficulty in recruiting candidates for

          8  the title. The Department has advertised for the

          9  position in The Chief and in other newspapers, has

         10  posted the position on the City's websites, and has

         11  utilized a web-based recruiting tool in order to

         12  attract candidates.

         13                 The position of School Safety Agent

         14  was formerly a non-competitive title, with

         15  applications made by submitting a resume, but at the

         16  NYPD's request, the Department of Citywide

         17  Administrative Services established the position as

         18  a competitive civil service title, and applications

         19  now made through an open competitive examination.

         20                 The first such exam was given on June

         21  9th of this year, and 1,380 applicants took the

         22  test.

         23                 We are awaiting the establishment of

         24  the list, in the meantime we continue to process

         25  applications which were made before the position was
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          2  designated competitive.

          3                 Anyone hired before the establishment

          4  of the list will be rolled over into the competitive

          5  title, including our current employees. Applicants

          6  who did not take the test but are hired after the

          7  list is exhausted will be considered provisional

          8  employees, and will need to take and pass the next

          9  test, in order to retain their positions.

         10                 Note that now that the position is

         11  competitive, DCAS will participate in the

         12  recruitment effort announcing upcoming tests and

         13  publicizing their filing dates. The requirements for

         14  the entry level position are a high school diploma

         15  or equivalent, and the ability to meet the

         16  qualifications for appointment as a special

         17  patrolman within 90 days, which includes being over

         18  the age of 21, a United States Citizen and a City

         19  resident. Candidates must pass a psychological and

         20  medical assessment, including drug screening, and an

         21  extensive background investigation. They must also

         22  pass a qualifying physical test, which requires them

         23  to perform simulated tasks designed to replicate

         24  stair climbing, victim rescue, emergency response

         25  and struggle with a resistant individual. The
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          2  starting salary is $28,919, and increases to $32,677

          3  after two years.

          4                 Note that the current salary is in

          5  fact higher than the figures provided to the Council

          6  last week, which reflected the prior contract.

          7  School Safety Agents received the normal fringe

          8  benefits associated with full-time civilian City

          9  employment, vacation leave, sick leave, health

         10  benefits and pension benefits.

         11                 School Safety Agents are required to

         12  purchase regulation uniforms at the beginning of

         13  their careers, and receive a yearly uniform

         14  allowance of $668 to help defray the cost of

         15  replacement. Newly hired School Safety Agents have a

         16  probation period of one year.

         17                 School Safety Agents receive an

         18  initial comprehensive 14-week training cost,

         19  including instruction in the areas of law, police,

         20  science, behavioral science and physical education

         21  and tactics. Because School Safety Agents have

         22  limited peace officer powers through their

         23  designation as special patrolmen, the course is

         24  designed as a basic course for peace officers

         25  without firearms. However, in order to assist in
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          2  preparing School Safety Agents for their special

          3  role as part of the school community, Department of

          4  Education personnel also participate in training as

          5  instructors and address specific areas such as

          6  special education, school administration, school

          7  governance, adolescent suicide, conflict resolution,

          8  child abuse and substance abuse prevention.

          9                 With respect to retention issues, the

         10  attrition rate for School Safety Agents was about

         11  nine percent over the course of 2006 for an average

         12  of 37 School Safety Agents per month. A class of 100

         13  is scheduled to be hired and trained in November.

         14  School Safety Agents leave for a variety of reasons,

         15  including other opportunities available to them

         16  because of their training and experience.

         17                 We would now like to discuss the

         18  position of School Crossing Guard, a very different

         19  job.

         20                 School Crossing Guards are part-time

         21  civilian employees, assigned to individual precincts

         22  within the Patrol Services Bureau.

         23                 There are 2,266 School Crossing

         24  Guards assigned to every precinct of the City,

         25  except for the Central Park Precinct. They are
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          2  primarily responsible for protecting children at

          3  school crossings and they regulate traffic as

          4  necessary to escort children safely across the

          5  street in accordance with traffic signals.

          6                 They are generally assigned to

          7  elementary schools, public and non-public, as well

          8  as to some middle schools, depending upon the

          9  traffic condition around the school.

         10                 Assignments within the precinct are

         11  made based in seniority at the beginning of the

         12  school year. School Crossing Guards are not peace

         13  officers and do not take enforcement action. There

         14  is no promotional path for School Crossing Guards.

         15  Over 97 percent of School Crossing Guards are women,

         16  approximately one-third are white, one-third are

         17  black and one-third are Hispanic, and about two

         18  percent are Asian or American-Indian. About half of

         19  the School Crossing Guards are over 50 years of age.

         20                 Because of its unique character, the

         21  job of School Crossing Guard is sometimes a

         22  difficult position to fill. This part-time work

         23  which requires the Guard to be at her post at the

         24  beginning and end of the school day, generally for

         25  two hours each time, plus an hour in the middle of
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          2  the day if the school dismisses for lunch.

          3                 School Crossing Guards are most

          4  likely to live in the vicinity of the school they

          5  are assigned to and the position therefore has to be

          6  geographically targeted, which limits the number of

          7  potential applicants. In addition, the traditional

          8  pool of applicants, mothers who did not otherwise

          9  work outside the home, has greatly decreased over

         10  the last several years.

         11                 Attracting candidates for the

         12  position requires a sustained effort. The Personnel

         13  Bureau, and Patrol Services Bureau, work together to

         14  mount recruitment campaigns, publishing newspaper

         15  advertisements, distributing posters to all

         16  precincts, posting the position on the City's

         17  website.

         18                 The most direct and effective

         19  recruitment is, of course, done at the local level,

         20  through precinct personnel. Each precinct has a

         21  School Crossing Guard coordinator, typically a

         22  uniformed member of the precinct's Highway Safety

         23  Unit, who is responsible for supervising the School

         24  Crossing Guards assigned to the precinct.

         25                 The Coordinator and the Precinct's
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          2  Community Affairs Officer solicit candidates at the

          3  Precinct Community Council meetings, PTA meetings,

          4  schools and in the course of their other community

          5  contacts.

          6                 They often enlist the help of School

          7  Safety personnel, and focus considerable attention

          8  on recruitment in May and June when the Department

          9  is gearing up for the next school year.

         10                 We stress the many positive aspects

         11  of the job, full health benefits, working close to

         12  home, working with children, flexibility during the

         13  day. Note that the Chief of Personnel periodically

         14  forwards the list of vacancies to the school

         15  crossing guards, to the Chief of Patrol, confirming

         16  where the vacancies are and encouraging patrol

         17  personnel in their efforts to fill the positions.

         18                 Commissioner Kelly has also welcomed

         19  the City Council's help in this effort. We have

         20  brought with us a recruitment poster, which we will

         21  be glad to supply you with, and we can provide

         22  background information regarding the position if you

         23  would like to assist the Department in filling its

         24  vacancies.

         25                 The position of School Crossing Guard
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          2  has no formal educational or experienced

          3  requirements, and anyone interested in the position

          4  may apply, may simply visit the local precinct

          5  stationhouse to file a preliminary application.

          6                 The applicant is interviewed by the

          7  School Crossing Guard Coordinator and the

          8  individual's information is forwarded to the Patrol

          9  Services Bureau, the overhead command of the patrol

         10  precincts.

         11                 The Department then periodically

         12  conducts a processing day for School Crossing Guard

         13  applicants. They come to One Police Plaza, fill out

         14  a more formal application package and receive a

         15  preliminary screening interview by my staff, and are

         16  then assigned a date for examination by the Medical

         17  Division.

         18                 Candidates must pass a medical

         19  assessment, including drug screening and an

         20  extensive background investigation. They are not

         21  required to take a physical standard test. If the

         22  candidates are found eligible, they await the

         23  scheduling of a training class, which depends upon

         24  the availability of the Police Academy, and also

         25  upon whether there is a vacancy in the precinct in
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          2  which they will work.

          3                 Classes of about 40 are usually

          4  scheduled every six to eight weeks. School crossing

          5  guards receive a six-day training course, generally

          6  introducing them to the Department's rules and

          7  procedures, and focusing on such subjects as traffic

          8  control, documenting their activity, integrity

          9  issues, safe control of intersections, first aid and

         10  child behavior.

         11                 One of the training days is devoted

         12  to field training, where the new School Crossing

         13  Guard works at her assigned precinct with an

         14  experienced School Crossing Guard. Starting salary

         15  is $9.13 per hour for new hires increasing to $11.92

         16  after three years.

         17                 School Crossing Guards receive health

         18  benefits and sick leave, as well as vacation leave,

         19  which is paid out as a cash benefit and they are

         20  eligible for a pension benefit.

         21                 School Crossing Guards are not

         22  required to purchase full uniforms, and are required

         23  instead to wear appropriate clothing.

         24                 However they do need to purchase

         25  certain uniform items, a regulation cap and
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          2  reflective safety vest, white gloves, a traffic

          3  whistle, regulation yellow raincoat and cap. They

          4  must also carry a memorandum pad, similar to a

          5  police officer's memo book, in which they document

          6  their activities. School Crossing Guards receive a

          7  yearly uniform allowance of $196 and have a

          8  probation period of six months.

          9                 Most School Crossing Guards do not

         10  work during the summer months and collect

         11  unemployment benefits until they return when school

         12  opens in September. Unemployment benefits are also

         13  paid during Christmas and Easter breaks.

         14                 With respect to retention issues, the

         15  attrition rate of School Crossing Guards was about

         16  8.6 percent over the course of 2006, for an average

         17  of 16 employees per month. There are currently

         18  approximately 90 vacancies and a class is scheduled

         19  for early November.

         20                 The reasons School Crossing Guards

         21  leave vary. Some obtain full-time positions. Some

         22  leave because they find it to be challenged to work

         23  outside in bad weather, and others leave because

         24  their age and health issues may prevent them from

         25  comfortably doing the job.
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          2                 In closing, we thank the Council for

          3  your interest in the work of School Safety Agents

          4  and School Crossing Guards who help to make the

          5  City's children safer in very different ways.

          6                 We will continue to do our best to

          7  recruit, hire and train School Safety Agents and

          8  School Crossing Guards.

          9                 We would appreciate any help you

         10  could offer in filling our angst for the best

         11  possible candidates.

         12                 Thank you, and we will be pleased to

         13  answer any questions you may have.

         14                 CHAIRPERSON ADDABBO: Thank you very

         15  much. I understand that's the only prepared

         16  testimony. We will now go to questions. Before we

         17  do, let me acknowledge some of our colleagues who

         18  are here with us today. We have Council Member James

         19  Vacca, Council Member Melinda Katz and Council

         20  Member Dan Garodnick.

         21                 Thank you very much, to my

         22  colleagues, for being here today. I would like to

         23  take a moment for the Sergeant-Of-Arms for arranging

         24  the room today. We have Council Member James Oddo

         25  over to the right here.
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE: Don't get him

          3  mad. Introduce him.

          4                 CHAIRPERSON ADDABBO: Okay. I think

          5  we'll be okay today.

          6                 I again want to thank this panel for

          7  being here and for all being here.

          8                 I really liked your last, your

          9  closing of seeking help in again offering filling

         10  the ranks. That's what we're here to do, to try and

         11  see what we can do to collaboratively work together

         12  to improve not only recruitment retention but the

         13  current workplace environment for these workers,

         14  these dedicated workers.

         15                 Just for the record, because, again,

         16  it tends to go toward the recruitment and retention,

         17  the pay for both Crossing Guards and for School

         18  Safety Agents, for the record, when was the last

         19  increase for both?

         20                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER WECHSLER: The

         21  salary for School Safety Agent is as of April 23rd,

         22  2007, and for School Crossing Guards, February 1st,

         23  2007. School Crossing Guards are represented by

         24  District Council 37, and the School Safety Agents,

         25  the International Brother of Teamsters, Local 237.
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON ADDABBO: You also

          3  mentioned you have posters here today, and, again, I

          4  think it would be great, for again recruitment

          5  purposes, if those could be forwarded to the

          6  governmental offices so we are given an opportunity

          7  to display them within our offices in an effort to

          8  help recruitment, so if we can in the future get a

          9  copy of those posters, that might be helpful.

         10                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER WECHSLER: We

         11  have two or three to give you today, and we can

         12  forward it to any Council Member who wishes to have

         13  them.

         14                 CHAIRPERSON ADDABBO: With regards to

         15  Crossing Guards, and, again, we're going to touch on

         16  Crossing Guards and Safety Agents, but with regards

         17  to Crossing Guards, a number of issues that, again,

         18  may help in the sense of recruitment and retention,

         19  the part-time aspect. As we go forward and our

         20  schools being open more and more so year-round, do

         21  you foresee possibly in the future that this

         22  part-time label will be lifted and the Crossing

         23  Guard may be a full-time position somewhere in the

         24  future? Again, as our schools become more and more

         25  year-round institutions?
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          2                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER WECHSLER:

          3  Well, at this point it still remains part time. As

          4  we said, in the morning, in the afternoon, sometimes

          5  during lunch. There were never School Crossing

          6  Guards working in the summer. The last two years, as

          7  more and more summer programs have developed, there

          8  is now a regular cadre of School Crossing Guards

          9  working through the summer months. So, it's become

         10  in many instances a 12 month a year position, but

         11  not full time in the sense of 35 hours a week at

         12  this point.

         13                 CHAIRPERSON ADDABBO: Again, in the

         14  future, and I'm talking basically maybe five, ten

         15  years down the road, do you see it possibly becoming

         16  a full-time position?

         17                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER WECHSLER: To

         18  be honest I don't think that we've looked at it at

         19  this point. It's something we could consider in the

         20  future.

         21                 CHAIRPERSON ADDABBO: I understand

         22  from the Crossing Guards the odd hours, obviously,

         23  is something that may be a factor in the issue of

         24  recruitment.

         25                 Do you ever see a proposal where the
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          2  hours may change at all? Or again it may be adapted

          3  to again the increased need for Crossing Guards?

          4                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER WECHSLER:

          5  Well, I also remember my first School Crossing

          6  Guard, probably older than you are. The program was

          7  created in the 1950s by Mayor Wagner. At that point

          8  it was most women, stay-at-home moms, and they were

          9  interested in working an hour in the morning, an

         10  hour in the afternoon, an hour for lunch.

         11                 As the world has changed around us

         12  and recruitment has become an issue because there

         13  aren't that many mothers have that availability.

         14  Many are working. So, again, the need at the school

         15  level is not there during when the children are in

         16  class, obviously there is nobody to cross. So, we

         17  got the reality of when the schools need them, which

         18  is the morning, the afternoon and lunch, possibly,

         19  against the reality of the fact that women are

         20  looking for a full-time job. So, it's an issue to

         21  look at. I really don't have an answer at this point

         22  as to what it would be in the future.

         23                 CHAIRPERSON ADDABBO: But an issue

         24  that it could possibly be looked at?

         25                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER WECHSLER: We
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          2  can look at it if it possibly becomes an issue,

          3  again, of negotiation. To create it to a full-time

          4  position is an issue of negotiation between the City

          5  and the union and the funding issue also.

          6                 CHAIRPERSON ADDABBO: You mentioned

          7  just now about mothers being the target as far as

          8  Crossing Guards in the past. Obviously even of today

          9  and of certain other populations that you're

         10  targeting possibly as Crossing Guards. Retirees,

         11  former City employees of retired, Fire Department

         12  retired, NYPD, have certain agencies been targeted

         13  to possibly be Crossing Guards?

         14                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER WECHSLER: We

         15  have not targeted City retirees. I think many of the

         16  Guards themselves may be retirees of perhaps private

         17  industry. As I stated, the average age in many cases

         18  is over 50, which is interesting, it's not the

         19  younger mothers we used to get years ago.

         20                 The issue of retirees working has not

         21  been looked at specifically. There are certain

         22  restrictions on how much money retirees who are

         23  collecting a pension can earn. But in the final

         24  analysis, the Guards are probably earning less than

         25  that cap. So, it's a population we could consider in
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          2  the future. We have not targeted them as of this

          3  point.

          4                 CHAIRPERSON ADDABBO: And, again, I'm

          5  sure you are exploring other alternatives and

          6  constantly thinking of ways to recruit.

          7                 Again, with the Crossing Guards,

          8  notification of their role after school ends and

          9  some of them come back for the summer season, one of

         10  the issues that have been brought up to my attention

         11  was late notification of when they may be located in

         12  a certain spot, in a position at a school.

         13                 Is there a way that we could possibly

         14  move up the time of notification so that in order to

         15  better accommodate some of these Crossing Guards

         16  that work during the summer?

         17                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER WECHSLER:

         18  Captain Mulligan.

         19                 CAPTAIN MULLIGAN: We could take a

         20  look at that. Currently right now it's based on the

         21  seal of the command looking into where the property

         22  placed them within a command, so we could discuss

         23  that in the future.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON ADDABBO: And I appreciate

         25  that, because I think that's one issue that we
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          2  probably address quite quickly knowing which schools

          3  will be open for the summer and where the need might

          4  be. So, if we can move up the notification for the

          5  Crossing Guards again, that might be one way of not

          6  only helping those who are currently Crossing

          7  Guards, but maybe even a sense of recruitment as

          8  well.

          9                 CAPTAIN MULLIGAN: We'll take a look

         10  at that.

         11                 CHAIRPERSON ADDABBO: I do appreciate

         12  that.

         13                 Questions from Chair Vallone.

         14                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE: Thanks, Council

         15  Member Addabbo.

         16                 Let me just start there. What's to

         17  discuss? I mean, I'm glad we want to do that. I

         18  mean, the discussion, I'm always happy to have that,

         19  but it's a simple problem to solve. Why can't we

         20  just notify them earlier? What needs to be done?

         21  Let's do it now? What needs to be done to get that

         22  done?

         23                 CAPTAIN MULLIGAN: I don't believe

         24  there's a problem. I would just have to take that

         25  back to my superiors. I believe that will not be an
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          2  issue. There are issues, the reasons I believe there

          3  are delays at times is because people do leave and

          4  they notify us late. An area might be short guards

          5  at a time, so we as a borough or as a commanding

          6  officer or precinct, we look into where we need them

          7  at this most at this time if I'm short. So, it's

          8  moving them around. And also we have to take the

          9  Guard themselves, where they live, to the location

         10  and things like that. There are a lot to look at,

         11  but I don't believe that will be a problem in the

         12  future.

         13                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE: Clearly there

         14  are going to be situations as you just said, you're

         15  trying your best and there's nothing you can do, you

         16  have to give late notification. But in other

         17  situations, most likely you will be able to, so

         18  let's work together and get that done.

         19                 CAPTAIN MULLIGAN: We'll get that

         20  done.

         21                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE: It sounds like

         22  one of the simplest things we can take care of today

         23  to make their job a little easier.

         24                 All right, let me thank all of you

         25  for the work you're doing. I never feel my kids are
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          2  unsafe when I leave them in charge, and that's very

          3  important.

          4                 You said the numbers for School

          5  Safety Agents, I believe it's presently 4,899 School

          6  Safety Agents, 2,266 Crossing Guards; how are those

          7  numbers established?

          8                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER WECHSLER:

          9  Well, surveys are done periodically by the Chief of

         10  Patrol, as to what schools are open, new schools

         11  open, old schools close. Coordinators analyze which

         12  streets need to be covered. That information is

         13  ultimately channeled to the Chief of Patrol, and

         14  ultimately to negotiation I guess between the Police

         15  Department and the budget process by OMB.

         16                 The School Safety Agent number I

         17  believe comes out of again an analysis by the

         18  Department of Education and the Discussion between

         19  the Police Department and OMB.

         20                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE: Okay, assuming

         21  you were able to fill the positions of Crossing

         22  Guards that aren't filled, do you believe that those

         23  two numbers are adequate right now, or are you

         24  anticipating increasing those in the future?

         25                 CAPTAIN MULLIGAN: Again, we believe
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          2  it to be adequate at this time. I mean, since 2000,

          3  we have seen an increase from 2,276 guards to 2,358

          4  guards, based on recommendations and requests from

          5  the community, and at this time we survey it every

          6  year and feel that it's adequate at this time.

          7                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE: You mean the

          8  Crossing Guards?

          9                 CAPTAIN MULLIGAN: The Crossing

         10  Guards.

         11                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE: And how have the

         12  numbers of School Safety Agents fluctuated over the

         13  years?

         14                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER WECHSLER: At

         15  the beginning of the merge, in December of 1998,

         16  3,501 agents were transferred into the Police

         17  Department, and we're now at 4,899.

         18                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE: That's very

         19  encouraging, because when I sit here with the Police

         20  Department, I don't hear those numbers, we're down

         21  from 41,000 in 2001 to 36,000 now. I'm amazed, I

         22  know it's not their fault, but I'm amazed that we're

         23  allowing that to happen after 2011. But with your

         24  positions we are increasing them, and that's the way

         25  it should be going. So, kudos.
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          2                 Regarding School Safety Agents, you

          3  said that you lose 37 a month, and a class of 100 is

          4  scheduled to be hired and trained in November. That

          5  replaces say three months. So, how often are those

          6  classes held?

          7                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER WECHSLER:

          8  We're pretty much filled up in terms of the

          9  vacancies. At this point there are only two classes

         10  scheduled in the fiscal year, 100 in November and

         11  130 in February. And if you do the math, it doesn't

         12  work out to 37 times 12. I think we got ahead of

         13  ourselves in the last fiscal year. We hired a good

         14  number in 2006, so we are where we should be,

         15  probably even a little bit over.

         16                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE: Okay. Are the

         17  classes held the same time every year?

         18                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER WECHSLER: No.

         19  They're scheduled when the attrition is anticipated,

         20  and when the Academy, we can fit them in vis-a-vis

         21  other classes going on, police officer, traffic

         22  agents, various different classes that the Police

         23  Academy puts in place.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE: Regarding the

         25  School Safety Agents, this is a hearing, I'm sorry,
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          2  a topic we've discussed at my hearings many times

          3  with Commissioner Kelly, who is very involved in

          4  both of these issues. And at one of our last

          5  hearings, the President of 237 testified that they

          6  had made a recommendation that the Civil Service

          7  test be used to promote SSAs from Level 2 and Level

          8  3 -- up to Level 2 and Level 3, the Sergeant

          9  positions. Right now apparently that's done entirely

         10  at the NYPD's discretion. Has that suggestion been

         11  discussed in any way?

         12                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER WECHSLER: We

         13  proposed that to DCAS. What we call "Group Leader,"

         14  or some people refer to as "Level 3" or as you said

         15  "Sergeant," be created as a separated Civil Service

         16  test above School Safety Agent.

         17                 DCAS did a job analysis and did not

         18  feel that the separation of duties was broad enough

         19  to warrant a separate Civil Service test.

         20                 When we got that back as Commissioner

         21  Hirst response, we've come up with an alternative

         22  system.  Prior to this, the School Safety Division

         23  nominated their own people. It's not really a level,

         24  it's a salary differential, and so they totally

         25  controlled it, and so there was issues on the
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          2  union's part about how the people were selected. So,

          3  we've now taken that responsibility from the School

          4  Safety Division into the Personnel Bureau. Everybody

          5  who now gets promoted in the Police Department,

          6  whether you're a Chief, a Lieutenant, or a civilian

          7  or now a School Safety Group Leader, is vetted by my

          8  staff. Now, that means that the School Safety

          9  Division conducts interviews with a panel that is

         10  EEO sensitive, nominates candidates to my staff. We

         11  then vet them, including an Internal Affairs'

         12  background check, department advocate, we review

         13  their performance evaluation, their sick record, the

         14  total view, whether you're going to Chief,

         15  Lieutenant, Senior Police Administrative Aid or a

         16  Group Leader. We vet them, and only the people that

         17  pass through our fine-sifting process will

         18  ultimately be promoted. The first group under this

         19  new system will be promoted a week from today next

         20  Friday.

         21                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE: So, I'm not

         22  taking a position of this, I'm not faulting you in

         23  any way. I'm just trying to get to the bottom of it.

         24                 When you said you went to DCAS, and I

         25  guess Commissioner Hirst didn't approve the idea, is
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          2  that the final say? Does it get appealed? How does

          3  that work?

          4                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER WECHSLER:

          5  Well, the establishment of positions falls under the

          6  jurisdiction of DCAS. Again, I'm not going to get

          7  into a dual here either with another commissioner.

          8  They looked at it under their criteria of what

          9  justifies another civil service title, and they felt

         10  that many of the group leaders are in effect working

         11  Agents, they're doing the same thing as the Agents

         12  are doing, and in addition do first-line

         13  supervision. I suppose some are different than what

         14  you refer to as a Sergeant, or what I might call

         15  First-Line Supervisor. We felt there was a need for

         16  it. Their analysis did not justify it, and we have

         17  taken this alternative method of processing

         18  promotees, and we hope it will work. This month is

         19  the first go-around, as I said.

         20                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE: Okay. We did

         21  discuss changes in the job title, it's now

         22  competitive. And you went through for the School

         23  Safety Agents and you went through the requirements.

         24  Now, have those requirements changed, since it's

         25  become competitive, or are these the same
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          2  requirements that used to exist?

          3                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER WECHSLER: The

          4  requirements are the same. We've added the physical

          5  aspect, the physical test. It is a new addition that

          6  we've added.

          7                 Other than that, the requirements are

          8  the same, and of course, there's a Civil Service

          9  test. The paper and pencil test. A list will be

         10  established. It will be utilized in list order, as

         11  any other Civil Service list with the one-in-three

         12  rule, and it's now competitive.

         13                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE: Okay. You're

         14  down a little less than 100 Crossing Guards, and

         15  that's basically about the same thing that Ray Kelly

         16  testified to a few months ago, I still -- you know,

         17  it could be because I just miss it, but I haven't

         18  seen any advertising campaigns, or I haven't opened

         19  up a paper and seen "apply for the job" or saw it on

         20  TV or something like that; has that been actually

         21  going on?

         22                 I know you testified to it and it's

         23  something we want to happen, but I haven't seen

         24  that. Have we increased the budget, what are the

         25  plans here?
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          2                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER WECHSLER:

          3  Recruitment plans. We have not done television

          4  advertising. In June of '07 we did the Chief, we did

          5  the Daily News, we did the New York Post, which is

          6  the Citywide kinds of advertising we do.

          7                 Again, it's basically, as I said, a

          8  grassroots operation, because I can tell you

          9  precinct-by-precinct where the vacancies are, but if

         10  I tell you in the 122nd Precinct there is a vacancy,

         11  122nd is a very, very large geographic area, and

         12  only the 122nd Precinct and their coordinator could

         13  tell you whether it's on the South Shore of Staten

         14  Island or the middle part of Staten Island so they

         15  could target.

         16                 And it's almost impossible for a

         17  woman to travel if they don't own a car from one

         18  part of the 122 to the other part of the 122. So,

         19  it's really got to be a targeted recruitment effort.

         20  So, we depend on Captain Mulligan's people in the

         21  field to get out there to the specific area. We've

         22  got a vacancy right now in PS 54 on Highland

         23  Boulevard, which is nowhere's (sic) to get to if

         24  you're at the other end of the 122. So, the

         25  coordinator in each precinct can target the
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          2  immediate community, you know, the libraries, the

          3  PTA of PS 54 and so on. That's why you may not see

          4  it on Channel 2.

          5                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE: Maybe I also

          6  don't see it because I don't know unless you tell

          7  me, but would, for instance, my district, District

          8  22, you know, Astoria, would that be a district

          9  that's short of Security Guard Crossing Agents right

         10  now? Maybe it isn't and may that's why there is not

         11  much of an effort in that district.

         12                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER WECHSLER: Is

         13  that the 114 Precinct?

         14                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE: Correct.

         15                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER WECHSLER: You

         16  have a quota of 46 and right now you have 39

         17  positions. So, you have seven vacancies, my bad

         18  luck, you picked the worst precinct to talk about.

         19                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE: My bad luck. I

         20  need to work much more closely with you, as I'm sure

         21  other Council members do to get this publicized. I

         22  have not done my due diligence either. I need to get

         23  out there and get one of those posters, put it right

         24  up in my window today. I know you only have three,

         25  so I'm planning one of them, as Chair's privilege.
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          2                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER WECHSLER:

          3  Captain Mulligan advises me that we have six people

          4  processing for the 114th Precinct. So, hopefully in

          5  the next class we should get a lot of your positions

          6  filled.

          7                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE: Great. But I

          8  pledge to work with you and try to get that shortage

          9  filled. And now let me introduce the Council Members

         10  who have arrived. Council Member Mark-Viverito was

         11  here. Council Member Mike Nelson is still here, and

         12  we'll go to some Council members for questions.

         13                 CHAIRPERSON ADDABBO: We have

         14  questions from Council Member Vacca.

         15                 CHAIRPERSON VACCA: Yes, thank you,

         16  Chair Addabbo and Chair Vallone.

         17                 I wanted to speak about Crossing

         18  Guards specifically. It's my understanding that you

         19  have locations where you assign Crossing Guards that

         20  are known as A, B or C locations. Can you describe

         21  how does a location become A? How does a location

         22  become B or C? What criteria you use in establishing

         23  those priorities?

         24                 CAPTAIN MULLIGAN: Well, it's not so

         25  specific as A, B and C. But basically it's basically
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          2  Commanding Officer, along with the principal of the

          3  local schools, the community input and our School

          4  Crossing Guard coordinators in the precinct review

          5  complaints from the school, complaints from the

          6  community, and traffic statistics, whether

          7  accidents, summonses, things of that nature in the

          8  area, and we develop what needs to be covered, a

          9  priority list of displaced needs to be covered,

         10  other than another school that might have less

         11  traffic or less accidents, less pedestrian safety,

         12  it wouldn't be as high on the priority list, and

         13  just right down the list.

         14                 COUNCIL MEMBER VACCA: Knowing of this

         15  system, as I have for a long time, I'm a bit

         16  concerned that we may not have enough School

         17  Crossing Guards. I'll tell you why.

         18                 When Crossing Guard at location X is

         19  not there because of sickness or personal emergency,

         20  whatever the case may be. If that's an A location,

         21  that A location must be filled. A Crossing Guard is

         22  then taken from a B or C location, and the B or C

         23  location is left vacant for the day. This has

         24  happened at my daughter's school for some time, it's

         25  happened at many other schools. So many locations
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          2  because they've been rated B or C are not covered.

          3  What do we do about covering all locations at all

          4  times? Is this a Citywide issue?

          5                 CAPTAIN MULLIGAN: I don't believe it

          6  to be a large issue. It is an issue, of course.

          7  There are circumstances of people going sick, taking

          8  a day off for family need, et cetera.

          9                 What we do do is, like you said, try

         10  to move a School Crossing Guard over to a more busy

         11  location. We also, if we have police officers

         12  available as part of the School Safety Team, we will

         13  assign them. Needs of the department dictating, we

         14  will assign them to that location for that early

         15  morning dismissal, I mean arrival and the afternoon

         16  dismissal, try to fill those slots. Is it done all

         17  the time? No, unfortunately it's not, but we do the

         18  best we can.

         19                 COUNCIL MEMBER VACCA: I think we have

         20  to talk about that further. I think there has to be

         21  a policy that School Crossing Guards have to be

         22  filled at all times. Isn't there a list you maintain

         23  of people who are available to be called in, should

         24  there be a vacancy? Isn't there a list that we

         25  should be maintaining so that these locations are
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          2  not left uncovered?

          3                 CAPTAIN MULLIGAN: I am a little

          4  unclear. Do you mean a list of other people to

          5  Schools Crossing Guards?

          6                 COUNCIL MEMBER VACCA: A list of

          7  Crossing Guards that are being processed. Is there a

          8  list that you maintain to backfill?

          9                 CAPTAIN MULLIGAN: No.

         10                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER WECHSLER: We

         11  have a list of potential candidates, and we allow a

         12  precinct to process candidates beyond the current

         13  list of vacancies. But if there is a vacancy today,

         14  if someone is sick today or quits today, I can't

         15  hire somebody today to fill that vacancy. It would

         16  be an injustice to your daughter, as well as to the

         17  guards, as well as the public to put somebody there

         18  who is untrained. And, so, we wait until we have

         19  groups of about 40 vacancies. We're doing this every

         20  six to eight weeks. We're getting them into the

         21  Academy, training them on how to take care of their

         22  needs, the children's needs, the public's needs and

         23  that they're well trained.

         24                 Yes, there will then be a gap for six

         25  to eight weeks, if someone quits today in the next
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          2  class, there's a class November 1st, which is about

          3  a week and a half away, but, you know, if someone

          4  quits November 2nd, you're right, there is going to

          5  be a vacancy there until the next class goes in.

          6                 COUNCIL MEMBER VACCA: Is it your

          7  policy to fill a post at all? Is it your policy to

          8  fill a post, period?

          9                 CAPTAIN MULLIGAN: It's not a policy,

         10  sir. It's we feel that the priority post should be

         11  filled for the safety of the children, because the

         12  area dictates. It's policy of the New York City

         13  Police Department to fill all posts when they

         14  possibly can, but there are times when that does not

         15  happen.

         16                 COUNCIL MEMBER VACCA: So even if a

         17  post is rated A, which is a high priority, those

         18  posts often go uncovered if there is --

         19                 CAPTAIN MULLIGAN: I would not use the

         20  word "often," but it could occur.

         21                 COUNCIL MEMBER VACCA: It could go

         22  uncovered for a week, two weeks, even if it's rated

         23  an A?

         24                 CAPTAIN MULLIGAN: No, I do not

         25  believe so, sir.
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          2                 COUNCIL MEMBER VACCA: How long of a

          3  period do you let that post go uncovered, if there

          4  is a situation?

          5                 CAPTAIN MULLIGAN: I would believe at

          6  the most a day or two, so we can move somebody over,

          7  make arrangements for another guard to be there, or

          8  a police officer.

          9                 COUNCIL MEMBER VACCA: But a B or C

         10  post could go uncovered for some period of time, if

         11  a person is out?

         12                 CAPTAIN MULLIGAN: Possible, yes.

         13                 COUNCIL MEMBER VACCA: That concerns

         14  me.

         15                 CAPTAIN MULLIGAN: Well, that's due to

         16  the vacancies in the Department. We do have a

         17  recruitment effort in early May, June, and like the

         18  Commissioner said, we're going to hire approximately

         19  another 100 guards in November and all the posts

         20  currently will be filled and that issue won't be

         21  there.

         22                 COUNCIL MEMBER VACCA: Who determines

         23  the A, B or C post, the police captain? Because I

         24  heard you mention community input. I'm not aware of

         25  community input in the determination.
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          2                 CAPTAIN MULLIGAN: What happens, sir,

          3  is we have Precinct Community Councils once a month

          4  in just about every precinct in the City. We receive

          5  community input at those meetings. Also the school

          6  principals are very involved, and school safety

          7  coordinators in the precinct. Usually a police

          8  officer is assigned to the Highway Traffic Safety

          9  Teams in every precinct in the City, they sit down

         10  with the Commanding Officer of the precinct, they go

         11  over statistics, complaints, you know, all the

         12  information that they gather, that's how they

         13  determine the priority.

         14                 COUNCIL MEMBER VACCA: But the

         15  determination is made by the Precinct Commander?

         16                 CAPTAIN MULLIGAN: Yes, it is.

         17                 COUNCIL MEMBER VACCA: The final

         18  determination.

         19                 CAPTAIN MULLIGAN: Yes, it is.

         20                 COUNCIL MEMBER VACCA: All right.

         21                 I see the salary levels, and I see

         22  that these are part-time jobs. I see the retention

         23  issue. What do we recommend? What do you see that we

         24  should be doing to lower the retention -- no, to

         25  address the retention issue, to make the job more
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          2  attractive, to get more people to apply? Is it more

          3  than outreach? What should we be doing? I mean, the

          4  individuals we're talking about are making 12,000,

          5  what should we be doing to help retain and to help

          6  encourage people to apply to make the job

          7  attractive?

          8                 CAPTAIN MULLIGAN: I can't speak on --

          9  these are issues that we're discussing today to make

         10  this better, but currently what we do do is we try

         11  to work with the School Crossing Guards, get them

         12  closer to home, get the locations that they want.

         13  Say their son or daughter is in a specific school,

         14  we try to assign them there because it makes it

         15  easier for them to take their child to school in the

         16  morning, to pick them up and to perform their job.

         17                 Another thing we also do is, with the

         18  uniform, do the limited uniform allowance that they

         19  receive, they're allowed to wear appropriate attire.

         20  They're not mandated to wear a specific uniform,

         21  other than the traffic whistle, the vest and safety

         22  equipment. And, you know, in the winter, so they can

         23  wear winter coats that they feel warm, et cetera,

         24  under the inclement weather. That's what we

         25  currently do now, and we're willing to take any
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          2  suggestions, and accept your help in trying to solve

          3  any of these issues.

          4                 COUNCIL MEMBER VACCA: Just in

          5  conclusion, I know now that many K to 8 schools and

          6  intermediate schools allow the children out to

          7  lunch. I know now that we also have many after

          8  school programs that go til 5:30 in the evening, and

          9  they let out at various intervals. You will have an

         10  after-school program that lets out at 3:30, another

         11  one that lets out at 4:15, another one at 5:00,

         12  based on whether or not it's remediation or whether

         13  or not it's recreational leisure; have you thought

         14  of allowing crossing guards flexibility to give them

         15  additional hours so that these children are

         16  protected who may be out of the building during

         17  various hours?

         18                 CAPTAIN MULLIGAN: Unfortunately, to

         19  the limit of the position, we do have some guards

         20  that work 25 hours, up to 25 hours they were allowed

         21  to work, the morning, the afternoon and that

         22  lunchtime dismissal. The commanding officer can work

         23  with that. But when usually we have these after

         24  school programs, we do our best to cover it with

         25  police officers from the command at those dismissal
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          2  times.

          3                 COUNCIL MEMBER VACCA: You have police

          4  officers covering what?

          5                 CAPTAIN MULLIGAN: Those after school

          6  programs we attempt. It's not always done, but we

          7  attempt the best we can, usually the after school

          8  programs are covered with either police officers or

          9  School Safety Agents.

         10                 COUNCIL MEMBER VACCA: Crossing people

         11  at the street?

         12                 CAPTAIN MULLIGAN: Sir, they're there

         13  to keep the safety of the children and they'll do

         14  what's necessary.

         15                 COUNCIL MEMBER VACCA: I have to be

         16  honest with you that I've never seen that once in my

         17  entire life.

         18                 I visit my schools. I was in two

         19  schools yesterday. I have never seen anyone else

         20  crossing children except School Crossing Guards. I

         21  have never seen that. And I respect what you're

         22  saying, and I'm sure you may have seen it, but it's

         23  not prevalent in my district. Without a School

         24  Crossing Guard there is no one at 3:30, 5:30, there

         25  is no one when children go out to lunch, if they're
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          2  in an intermediate school, grade 7, 8, I don't see

          3  anyone out there. And I know that our Crossing

          4  Guards are conscientious, but we're not allowing

          5  them to stay there. We're not providing them their

          6  presence at those hours, and I do not think that

          7  what you're stating is out there in the community.

          8                 CAPTAIN MULLIGAN: The limited use of

          9  the School Crossing Guards from DCAS, they're not

         10  full-time positions. We do move them around as we

         11  can to fit the hours of dismissal and early arrival

         12  and lunch. The after school programs, in my

         13  experience, unfortunately it may not be done there,

         14  I'll take a look into that. We do attempt to cover

         15  it with police officers.  Again, needs of the

         16  Department, emergencies, it might not get done all

         17  the time, but we do attempt it.

         18                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER WECHSLER:

         19  You're referring to dismissals in the same school at

         20  different hours, 3:00, 4:00, 5:00 in the same

         21  school. Okay, it's something we should look at, it's

         22  a very good idea. It will require additional

         23  funding, obviously, school-by-school and

         24  crossing-by-crossing within the precinct, and it's

         25  something I'll take back to look at and it would
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          2  require additional funding and perhaps we can work

          3  something out.

          4                 COUNCIL MEMBER VACCA: I appreciate

          5  that. And just let me elaborate quickly. Some

          6  children stay after school because under No Child

          7  Left Behind they have remediation which is required.

          8  Other children may stay behind because of a

          9  recreational program. They dismiss at different

         10  times, and, therefore -- but this is what we want

         11  our schools to be. We want our schools to be the

         12  focal point of the neighborhood. We want our schools

         13  to be open beyond 3:00. But then if parents don't

         14  have the capacity to pick up their children, these

         15  children are crossing busy thoroughfares at 4:00 and

         16  4:30 in the afternoon after they let out, and a

         17  Crossing Guard there would be of much help. So, I

         18  think that in 2007 that we're in a different place

         19  than where we were in 2003, 2001. We're in a

         20  different place. And I think that's good news, but

         21  we need you to provide the additional hours for the

         22  guards, in those conditions.

         23                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER WECHSLER:

         24  We'll look at it.

         25                 COUNCIL MEMBER VACCA: Thank you.
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON ADDABBO: Good point,

          3  Council Member Vacca. And, again, I appreciate the

          4  cooperation from the panel. And, again, in that

          5  effort to, again, look and recruit better, these

          6  employees, both Crossing Guards and School Safety

          7  Agents are employees of the NYPD, correct?

          8                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER WECHSLER: Yes,

          9  they are.

         10                 CHAIRPERSON ADDABBO: Do either get

         11  death benefits if they pass away on the job?

         12                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER WECHSLER: Yes,

         13  they do.

         14                 CHAIRPERSON ADDABBO: They both do?

         15                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER WECHSLER:

         16  They're employees of the City of New York. They do,

         17  yes.

         18                 CHAIRPERSON ADDABBO: So if a Crossing

         19  Guard, unfortunately, in the act of crossing someone

         20  gets hit by a car and passes away on the job, their

         21  family gets the benefits?

         22                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER WECHSLER: Yes.

         23                 CHAIRPERSON ADDABBO: School Safety

         24  Agent, in the situation in a school, unfortunately

         25  passes away on the job, their family gets the
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          2  benefits?

          3                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER WECHSLER: Yes.

          4                 CHAIRPERSON ADDABBO: Vests for School

          5  Safety Agents, is it being considered somewhere down

          6  the line as part of an appropriate part of the

          7  uniform?

          8                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER WECHSLER:

          9  Vests have been considered, puncture-proof vests, as

         10  well as other types of vests and other protective

         11  gear.

         12                 CHAIRPERSON ADDABBO: And where are we

         13  with that consideration, if I may?

         14                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER WECHSLER: I

         15  can tell you there was an ongoing committee that was

         16  held last year, and we're also looking at their

         17  recommendations to see what would be best inside of

         18  a school.

         19                 CHAIRPERSON ADDABBO: Let it be for

         20  the record, and I'll speak for myself, Councilman

         21  Vallone had to go to an Environmental Committee

         22  hearing, but as Chair of the Labor Committee, I

         23  would be all in favor of vests for School Safety

         24  Agents. So, if there is any way I can be of any help

         25  in promoting that, let me know. I appreciate that.
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          2                 And, again, I think we have to

          3  appreciate the collaborative effort between NYPD,

          4  Department of Ed, even DOT when looking to allocate

          5  our resources.

          6                 Are you currently happy with the way

          7  the relationship is with those agencies? And if I

          8  missed an agency, I apologize. Or do you think there

          9  could be better cooperation and dialogue within

         10  those agencies?

         11                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER WECHSLER: We

         12  have a very good relationship, as you saw in the

         13  testimony last week, obviously there were issues

         14  that were raised last week that we're looking

         15  further into, but, yes, the collaboration is

         16  excellent.

         17                 CHAIRPERSON ADDABBO: Again, I think

         18  with this issue it is very important.

         19                 The last question for myself at this

         20  time, School Crossing Guards: There was an increase

         21  I understand over this past summer. If I got the

         22  numbers right, there were 600 the previous summer,

         23  there was 900 this summer. What would be the reason,

         24  why would you think there was an increase in School

         25  Crossing Guards? Again, it's a good sign, but why
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          2  would you think there would be an increase?

          3                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER WECHSLER: In

          4  the summer?

          5                 CHAIRPERSON ADDABBO: In the summer.

          6                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER WECHSLER: To

          7  increase summer school and summer programs.

          8                 CHAIRPERSON ADDABBO: And the

          9  availability of the Crossing Guards. So, there is an

         10  availability of Crossing Guards who want to work in

         11  the summer?

         12                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER WECHSLER: I

         13  think we've been able to fill. The guards are there.

         14  The schools, if there is a need for the school and

         15  there is funding, we will be able to do it.

         16                 CHAIRPERSON ADDABBO: And, again, just

         17  as a reminder, as my earlier point, I'd like to work

         18  with you on notification, as far as those summer

         19  positions are concerned. I think that's a small step

         20  that we can do that would maybe be appreciated by

         21  many.

         22                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER WECHSLER: It's

         23  also key having the schools tell us, you know, which

         24  schools are going to be open in the summer. I'm not

         25  on that issue, but that's obviously a need.
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON ADDABBO: Follow-up

          3  questions from Council Member Vacca, and we've been

          4  joined by Council Member Robert Jackson.

          5                 COUNCIL MEMBER VACCA: I just want to

          6  add that we agree that there has to be better

          7  communication between DOE and a lot of people

          8  concerning what schools are open in the summer.

          9                 I agree with that, because many of us

         10  don't know until May or June what schools are

         11  opening in the summer. Yet, many of them provide

         12  summer breakfast and lunch, many of them provide

         13  remediation. I think DOE has to communicate earlier.

         14  But when they do, I want to see a Crossing Guard

         15  there. I want those posts filled.

         16                 Let me say something else to you. I

         17  make a strong case for Crossing Guards, too, when it

         18  comes to parochial schools, because I believe

         19  parochial school children and public school children

         20  both have safety issues.

         21                 I have two letters from constituents

         22  of mine. I'm not going to read them in the record,

         23  but I'm going to state for you basically. I have a

         24  parochial school in my district, St. Benedict School

         25  in Throggsneck. The people have written me and
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          2  they're saying here that they have one Crossing

          3  Guard for the entire school, and that intersections

          4  with no traffic lights, no four-way stop signs, and

          5  not even speed bumps are uncovered, all right? They

          6  have been concerned and they have brought this to my

          7  office on several occasions. In the past three years

          8  traffic around the school has increased. Many

          9  parents double and triple park in the morning as

         10  they drop their children off, which is true at every

         11  school probably in the City. And some cars don't

         12  slow down. This is one location which I would like

         13  to pass on to you to study, which is mainly the

         14  vicinity -- the only Guard they have is at Barclay

         15  and Logan Avenue.

         16                 I know that this may sound parochial.

         17  This is my community. This is one school that I am

         18  giving you. But I think that the school I'm giving

         19  you can be replicated over and over and over again

         20  throughout the City, where schools have maybe one

         21  Crossing Guard, yet they have three or four very

         22  busy intersections with no Crossing Guard at all,

         23  and I hear this very, very frequently. That's one

         24  thing I give you.

         25                 And then also privately I'm going to
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          2  talk to you about some locations in my district that

          3  are B and C locations that I know should be A's.

          4  Bottom line, bottom line to me when it comes to

          5  School Crossing Guards, is that as a parent, I'm not

          6  interested in B and C or A. I'm interested in every

          7  location being covered that is a possible threat to

          8  our kids. That's what I'm interested in. And if that

          9  means that we have to hire more people, or we have

         10  to give additional hours, or if we have to look at

         11  the pay that we're paying those that are there so

         12  that we retain experienced people, then we have to

         13  do it. But there is nothing greater that I can think

         14  of, when I see schools in the morning, many schools

         15  with school buses, double-parked cars, DOT often not

         16  placing the stop signs and traffic lights we need, I

         17  think that the School Crossing Guard is not a

         18  luxury, I think it's a necessity.

         19                 So, I make that point to you, and I

         20  hope that you'll look at these locations one by one.

         21  Perhaps you want to reach out to Council people, not

         22  just to get us to get more people to apply for your

         23  jobs, for these jobs, which I will help you, too, I

         24  offer my help, but also I would like you to reach

         25  out to Council people to ask us what locations do
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          2  you have that don't have coverage? What locations

          3  concern you that we may not be addressing? And I

          4  think if you reach out to the Council members in

          5  that regard, you will get significant locations and

          6  significant requests for assistance.

          7                 CHAIRPERSON ADDABBO: Thank you,

          8  Council Member Vacca. We've been joined by Council

          9  Member Vinnie Gentile, from Brooklyn.

         10                 I want to thank this panel for being

         11  here today, and as you go forward in thinking of

         12  ways to, again, help the situation with regards to

         13  School Crossing Guards and School Safety Agents, I

         14  hope you include in that thinking the City Council.

         15                 Any way that we can be any help with

         16  regards to the current workforce, improving their

         17  environment, or the future workforce, we would like

         18  to be part of the equation. So, please include us in

         19  any of the plans. And we again thank you, and

         20  Councilman Vallone has a statement.

         21                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE: Yes. On behalf

         22  of all the parents whose kids you keep safe every

         23  day, I just want to thank you for the work you do.

         24                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER WECHSLER:

         25  Thank you.
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON ADDABBO: Our next panel

          3  is Veronica Montgomery-Costa, President of Local

          4  372.

          5                 I want to thank you for your time and

          6  testimony today. You may begin.

          7                 MS. MONTGOMERY-COSTA: Good morning,

          8  Chairman Addabbo and Chairman Vallone, Jr.,

          9  Committee members. Local 372 thanks the City Council

         10  Committee on Civil Service and Labor and Public

         11  Safety for this opportunity to once again to

         12  publicly speak on behalf of the nearly 2,200 Local

         13  372 School Crossing Guards and our membership of

         14  26,000 Board of Education employees.

         15                 Each and every year we have had to

         16  appeal to the City Council to rectify a Mayor's

         17  budget which failed to fulfill its responsibility to

         18  our City's 1.1 million school children.

         19                 Those budgets also failed those who

         20  endure extreme weather conditions in the winter and

         21  summer and risk their lives every work day to keep

         22  our children safe, our Local 372 School Crossing

         23  Guards.

         24                 I'd like to say that there would be

         25  Crossing Guards here providing personal testimony,
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          2  but they have taken the responsible role of not

          3  leaving their post because they did not what to

          4  leave the post and have children cross the streets

          5  and possibly have an accident.

          6                 Traffic issues and the students to

          7  School Crossing Guard ratios are critical. We must

          8  not continue to ask the men and women who are Local

          9  372's every day heroes to risk their own lives

         10  because of unattended and poorly addressed traffic

         11  issues in intersections that have bee proven

         12  hazardous and sometimes deadly. We must not lose

         13  another hero like School Crossing Guard Betty Davis,

         14  who was killed in the line of duty before school

         15  opened on January 21st, 2001. Struck and thrown down

         16  to the pavement by a school minibus as she

         17  approached her post at the intersection of Linden

         18  Boulevard and Cross Island Parkway in Cambria

         19  Heights. Near schools located by highways and major

         20  intersections or in areas where traffic signs,

         21  signals and speed limits are frequently disregarded

         22  by drivers, children, parents and teachers have been

         23  needlessly injured or killed.

         24                 Local 372 would like to see

         25  up-to-date and complete data indicating at which of
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          2  those pedestrian accident locations there were no

          3  school crossing guards assigned.

          4                 Currently there is no mechanism for

          5  combining accurate current data from the Department

          6  of Transportation, the New York City Police

          7  Department and the Department of Education.

          8                 Perhaps if there were such a

          9  comparison chart available, the assignment of School

         10  Crossing Guards would be done with greater

         11  effectiveness and traffic accidents could be

         12  prevented.

         13                 Local 372 contends that in order to

         14  assure ideal safety conditions around our schools an

         15  improvement ratio of 460 to one must be met. Local

         16  372 conducted a Citywide survey in school year

         17  2006/2007 of the assignments of School Crossing

         18  Guards. The final chart, Attachment 1, shows our

         19  recommended increases in School Crossing Guard

         20  assignments by borough.

         21                 In School Year 2006/2007, three of

         22  the five boroughs fell far short of what would be

         23  considered a safer ratio of students to School

         24  Crossing Guards according to our survey.

         25                 Currently, in School Year 2007/2008,
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          2  we have 20 fewer School Crossing Guards Citywide. In

          3  Manhattan last year the student to School Crossing

          4  Guard ratio was at 518 to 1. We needed at least 50

          5  additional School Crossing Guards in Manhattan. In

          6  school year 2007/2008, we lost seven School Crossing

          7  Guards in Manhattan.

          8                 In the Bronx last year the student to

          9  School Crossing Guard ratio was 684 to 1, a minimum

         10  of 160 additional School Crossing Guards were needed

         11  in the Bronx. In school year 2007/2008, only four

         12  School Crossing Guards was added in the Bronx.

         13                 In Queens last year the student to

         14  School Crossing Guard ratio was 532 to 1. At least

         15  100 additional School Crossing Guards should have

         16  been assigned in Queens. In school year 2007/2008,

         17  only 25 more School Crossing Guards were added in

         18  Queens.

         19                 In Brooklyn, last year the student to

         20  School Crossing Guard ratio was 371 to 1, the only

         21  borough which was considered to have an ideal ratio.

         22  In school year 2007/2008, we lost 42 Crossing Guards

         23  in Brooklyn.

         24                 Staten Island, last year the student

         25  to School Crossing Guard ratio was 431 to 1. Staten
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          2  Island was one of the two boroughs to meet the

          3  improved ratio in the school year of 2007/2008. The

          4  ratio is unchanged in Staten Island.

          5                 2008, the Executive Budget request,

          6  Attachment 3, reflects the community board's demands

          7  for additional School Crossing Guards. Requests by

          8  the community board for additional coverage at

          9  school sites are most often denied. The ratio of

         10  student to School Crossing Guard continues to

         11  present a danger to our students.

         12                 Our community boards in the five

         13  boroughs responded to the need for School Crossing

         14  Guards in their 2008 Executive Budget register

         15  request, Attachment 3. Those requests were addressed

         16  in the 2008 adopted budget register with the

         17  following boilerplate:

         18                 "OMB supports the agency's position

         19  as followed: The City Council has provided funding

         20  annually for the additional School Crossing Guards.

         21  After the receipt of the additional funding, the

         22  Patrol Services Bureau surveys precincts for the

         23  need of additional School Crossing Guards, and those

         24  requests are met when possible."

         25                 The boilerplate indicates that
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          2  funding would be forthcoming for additional School

          3  Crossing Guards, yet in the school year 2007/2008,

          4  we have 20 fewer School Crossing Guards than last

          5  year. Clearly, any increased City Council funds were

          6  not spent on additional School Crossing Guards.

          7                 City Hall, the Mayor and the City

          8  Council still choose to save money by not

          9  annualizing School Crossing Guards, now a 12-month

         10  necessity.

         11                 Our School Crossing Guards are still

         12  hourly employees limited to 20 hours of work per

         13  week at $10.23 per hour. When schools are closed,

         14  they are not paid. Most School Crossing Guards are

         15  still laid off at the end of the school year.

         16                 The Deputy Commissioner mentioned

         17  that there was 936 guards hired in the summer. I'd

         18  like to make a correction. There was 580 guards that

         19  was hired. There was 936 people who expressed

         20  interest in working. So, I would like that to be

         21  noted.

         22                 The City must not continue to neglect

         23  the brave and dedicated workers like Sally Robinson,

         24  who has served as a School Crossing Guard for more

         25  than three decades. Even through her bouts with
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          2  ovarian and breast cancer, among the lowest paid

          3  City employees, her annually salary is a little over

          4  $12,700, including unemployment benefits.

          5                 Each school year, School Crossing

          6  Guards like Sally could be laid off during the

          7  summer months. When the summer school is in session,

          8  about 580 School Crossing Guards are selected to

          9  work. The remaining 1,600 pay ten percent of their

         10  own health insurance benefits, while subsisting on

         11  unemployment insurance and sacrificing their own

         12  family's quality of life.

         13                 The remaining 90 percent of the cost

         14  of these premiums is funded by employee contribution

         15  to our welfare fund.

         16                 This is an expensive administrative

         17  nightmare for the union, New York City Police

         18  Department, and the New York City Office of Labor

         19  Relations.

         20                 This intolerable injustice has been

         21  perpetuated because the City cannot find or will not

         22  fund the money to annualize our School Crossing

         23  Guards.

         24                 Benefits. Local 372 estimates that

         25  the total cost to the City of providing health
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          2  insurance to the 2,200 families involved is less

          3  than $1.5 million. We have provided tables

          4  indicating the cost estimates of annualization of

          5  health insurance, Attachment 4.

          6                 There should be no four-hour cap on

          7  School Crossing Guards' hours of service.

          8                 The choice to withhold coverage of

          9  more than four hours per day is absolutely

         10  indefensible when there is a real need for expanded

         11  hours of service and full coverage throughout the

         12  calendar year. At schools which will serve later

         13  meals, or which remain open for late afternoon

         14  recreation programs and academic programs, children

         15  will be staying later throughout the entire year.

         16  Additional hours of coverage by School Crossing

         17  Guards are absolutely vital.

         18                 Additional School Crossing Guards

         19  will be needed for the summer school 2008. It is

         20  also critical that there be coordination between the

         21  Department of Education and the New York City Police

         22  Department to ensure that a full complement of

         23  School Crossing Guards is available to cover these

         24  programs, in the public, private, parochial and

         25  charter schools.
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          2                 Local 372 is calling upon the City

          3  Council to urge the Mayor and the Chancellor to

          4  identify the summer school 2008 sites by June 1st to

          5  give Guards adequate notice to plan for personal

          6  obligations during the summer.

          7                 In conclusion, Local 372 once again

          8  urges the City Council to help ensure that our

          9  children travel to and from school unharmed and that

         10  those who risk their lives to protect them are

         11  properly compensated to improve the quality of life

         12  for their own families.

         13                 I've heard a lot of testimony this

         14  morning about in the uncovered locations of

         15  crossings that police officers are being utilized to

         16  cross children. That is just simply untrue. And if

         17  that is so, that is a very expensive proposition for

         18  the Police Department when they can be adding hours

         19  for School Crossing Guards.

         20                 So, I will tell you that I feel that

         21  it's pretty disingenuous to sit here and say that

         22  when I know for a fact that that's not happening.

         23                 When they say that they are doing

         24  outreach in terms of trying to hire individuals, the

         25  first news advertisement for hirees took place after
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          2  the last hearing when the Commissioner gave his

          3  testimony and was questioned about how they want

          4  about recruitment. We saw for the very first time

          5  advertisements in papers. It would be a very useful

          6  thing to make sure that advertisements also show up

          7  in local newspapers in the communities. As well, the

          8  union puts out a newsletter each month to all of the

          9  members. If there are vacancies, we will do

         10  outreach. There are many guards who express that

         11  there are friends who are looking for employment, so

         12  I just think that if there's better coordination in

         13  terms of outreach, that we could probably meet the

         14  goals of the Department if the goals are in fact to

         15  increase the numbers.

         16                 Thank you.

         17                 CHAIRPERSON ADDABBO: Thank you very

         18  much for your testimony. And let me go no further

         19  than to now say thank you to your members for their

         20  dedicated work throughout the City ensuring safety

         21  of our children, which is obviously of utmost

         22  importance.

         23                 On that note, you mentioned and also

         24  in your testimony, your participation in the process

         25  as the DOE and as NYPD and DOT discussed where to
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          2  place your members, even as they put out and devise

          3  posters like this to recruit and add, are you

          4  consulted at all? Are you part of that process at

          5  all?

          6                 MS. MONTGOMERY-COSTA: We have never

          7  been included in the process. We have asked

          8  questions at the negotiations tables and they say

          9  they do outreach in the community, through the

         10  community officer, but we have never been involved

         11  in that outreach effort.

         12                 CHAIRPERSON ADDABBO: And I'm sure you

         13  would like to be?

         14                 MS. MONTGOMERY-COSTA: Absolutely.

         15                 CHAIRPERSON ADDABBO: I'm sure.

         16                 Just a couple of questions. I know

         17  colleagues of mine have questions. What benefits do

         18  you not get now that you possibly would like to see

         19  in the future? You alluded to it in your testimony,

         20  maybe you could expand it a little bit; what

         21  benefits are you not receiving now that you may want

         22  to see in the future for your members?

         23                 MS. MONTGOMERY-COSTA: School Crossing

         24  Guards are out on their post in some of the most

         25  extreme weather conditions. They are out there in
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          2  frigid cold, they are out there when there's snow

          3  storms, when there is snow piled up on the grounds.

          4  They have to be exposed to all those extreme

          5  elements. They are out there during the summer and

          6  90 degree weather crossing kids.

          7                 Many of them express that they are

          8  suffering with arthritic kinds of conditions, and

          9  when they are laid off during the summer, these

         10  individuals who make as little as $10.23 an hour,

         11  are asked to pay a portion of their health insurance

         12  coverage. You would think that the vital services

         13  that they provide to the community, in terms of

         14  safety for our children, that the Department, the

         15  New York City Police Department would find it

         16  advisable to pay the health insurance of these

         17  individuals, because they are out there every day.

         18  There are people who have chronic bronchitis who are

         19  out there in those elements.

         20                 Many of the family plans are so

         21  cost-prohibitive that people actually go without

         22  health insurance over the summer because they can't

         23  afford it, because the monies that they receive

         24  through unemployment insurance is just not enough

         25  money to buy a policy.

                                                            73

          1  CIVIL SERVICE AND LABOR AND PUBLIC SAFETY

          2                 CHAIRPERSON ADDABBO: And I want to

          3  thank you because it was a part of y our testimony

          4  that you mentioned the health benefits, and I

          5  appreciate your estimate of the 1.5 million that

          6  would probably be needed to do that, if that number

          7  is accurate, in a $59 billion City budget it seems

          8  doable.

          9                 So, again, something that we should

         10  look forward to working with you on as we approach

         11  next year's budget, but a conversation that we

         12  should definitely start today.

         13                 The last question I have before

         14  getting to Council Member Vallone: You had mentioned

         15  the ratio of 460 to 1; how is that number determined

         16  as far as that being the appropriate safety ratio?

         17                 MS. MONTGOMERY-COSTA: Well, we feel

         18  that in terms of when children arrive at school,

         19  they don't arrive all at the same time. What happens

         20  is we feel that it's probably more manageable for

         21  460 as opposed to some locations that have 600 kids

         22  that are passing at a certain time of the morning,

         23  it's kind of unmanageable for one individual with

         24  one set of eyes and one set of hands and being able

         25  to stand out in the middle of the street and go back
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          2  and forward crossing kids. So, we find that this

          3  probably is probably one of the best ratios that we

          4  feel and when we talk to the Guards, they feel that

          5  that ratio, when we sit down in negotiations that

          6  that's the ratio that is probably doable.

          7                 MR. GARRIDO: If I may, Mr. Chairman?

          8                 CHAIRPERSON ADDABBO: Please. Just

          9  identify yourself for the record.

         10                 MR. GARRIDO: My name is Henry

         11  Garrido. I'm the Assistant Associate Director of DC

         12  37.

         13                 In looking at the ratio that you just

         14  asked the question on, we did a cross analysis of

         15  the number of accidents related near schools and

         16  looked at statistical data in districts where there

         17  was a higher amount of Crossing Guards, such as the

         18  Borough of Brooklyn, for instance, and found that

         19  the number of accidents were directly related to the

         20  number of Crossing Guards assigned to the specific

         21  schools, the better the ratio, obviously the less

         22  likelihood of an accident occurring in the

         23  intersection on or near the schools.

         24                 We also looked at areas where there

         25  was a high rate of accidents and found that in many
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          2  instances, the position that there is only one

          3  Crossing Guard in that particular intersection is

          4  not sufficient because you may be covering one area

          5  of the crossings where you have large avenues where

          6  you have two-way streets, there's one Crossing Guard

          7  crossing, it's virtually impossible for that one

          8  person to cover both sides of the intersection.

          9                 CHAIRPERSON ADDABBO: Again, I'm glad

         10  that at least in that ratio, in determining that

         11  ratio, Crossing Guards were consulted, and, again,

         12  we can appreciate that.

         13                 Council Member Vallone.

         14                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE: Thank you. I

         15  know Council Member Jackson has been acknowledged,

         16  but I wanted to personally acknowledge him also.

         17  He's Chair of our Education Committee and was my

         18  Co-chair a week or so ago in a hearing where I think

         19  you guys were all down here when we discussed other

         20  issues regarding School Safety Agents and the Police

         21  Department, in part of an ongoing effort to keep our

         22  schools safe. So, I wanted to welcome him. Thank you

         23  all for the work you guys do every day.

         24                 I'm looking at your statistics on the

         25  second page of your testimony, and you say that
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          2  Manhattan we need at least 50 additional guards and

          3  the Bronx 160, in Queens 100, and we know many of

          4  those are in my precinct apparently. So, that is 260

          5  -- 310. So, we know that we're down about 100. They

          6  agree we need at least another 100. So, you believe

          7  we would need another 310. So, 210 more than they're

          8  looking to hire; is that safe to say?

          9                 MS. MONTGOMERY-COSTA: I would say so,

         10  yes.

         11                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE: Okay. Why do you

         12  believe this disparity exists; for example, Queens

         13  and the Bronx, 116, 100 more additional guards,

         14  whereas in Brooklyn, you don't believe we need any

         15  more guards and the ratio is only 371 to 1, as

         16  opposed to 684 in the Bronx; why does that happen?

         17                 MS. MONTGOMERY-COSTA: I think

         18  basically in the Bronx and Queens, the way the

         19  districts are laid out, the schools are spread out.

         20  I mean in the other boroughs schools are pretty

         21  condensed in communities. But in Queens and the

         22  Bronx, many of the schools are situated near major

         23  arteries, and what happens is sometimes there are

         24  clusters of schools in a given area. I guess I could

         25  use the Bruckner Parkway in the Bronx. You have
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          2  several schools on the White, I think it's, what is

          3  it, White Plains Road, and you have all these

          4  clusters of schools there, and that's a major artery

          5  where cars are coming off the highway at a very high

          6  speed, and children have to cross those

          7  intersections. And, so, there is a need. There may

          8  be one guard there, and there could possibly be four

          9  guards necessary to really deal with the safety of

         10  students.

         11                 And I think that Councilman Vacca

         12  brought out an excellent point. They are designated

         13  by priority, the crossings, and it was very clear

         14  that many of these priorities that they designate

         15  they don't even follow, and to me, no child should

         16  be different from another child. Whether it's an A

         17  crossing, B crossing, C crossing, every child should

         18  have a School Crossing Guard at the corner crossing

         19  them, whether or not it's a priority or not.

         20                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE: Whether or not

         21  there are 100 kids crossing or ten, as you said.

         22                 You started off by saying we

         23  shouldn't have our school crossing guards working in

         24  hazardous and deadly conditions. And we agree, we

         25  want to make sure that they're kept as safe as

                                                            78

          1  CIVIL SERVICE AND LABOR AND PUBLIC SAFETY

          2  possible. But you didn't give us a way to get that

          3  done. You said that that's no cross mechanism

          4  between DOT, NYPD and DOE. But that was to determine

          5  where Crossing Guards should be placed. So, what do

          6  you recommend be done?

          7                 MS. MONTGOMERY-COSTA: The Department

          8  of Transportation identifies about 135 schools, if I

          9  believe -- 135 schools that are considered to be

         10  dangerous crossings that do not have school crossing

         11  guards. That information doesn't seem to be the

         12  information that is being integrated with the

         13  requests that are coming from the Department of

         14  Education and some of the other community boards

         15  that are making these requests.

         16                 Perhaps if the Department of

         17  Transportation would be more forthright in terms of

         18  the kind of data that they collect, that perhaps

         19  those agencies need to come together and then do a

         20  more effective job in terms of determining where

         21  these dangerous sites are.

         22                 I should tell you also in your

         23  district, I think a few weeks ago at IS 192 there

         24  was a child that was hit. And that was an area that

         25  didn't have a School Crossing Guard, and to my
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          2  understanding still does not.

          3                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE: Where is 192?

          4                 MS. MONTGOMERY-COSTA: That's in St.

          5  Albans.

          6                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE: Yes, that's a

          7  little bit out of my district. I think it's Leroy

          8  Comrie, but it is Queens and affects us all.

          9                 MS. MONTGOMERY-COSTA: Mm-hmm.

         10                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE: We're going to

         11  follow-up from this hearing, as we always do, and

         12  that will be one of the things we request of the

         13  City to find out what they're doing now to

         14  coordinate what can be done better. In fact, we'll

         15  clearly follow-up on the issue of notice to Crossing

         16  Guards by June 1st, as you requested, because they

         17  do seem to be interested in getting that done, so

         18  we'll follow-up with that for you.

         19                 Is there something, and maybe there

         20  is not, that we can do regarding dangerous

         21  intersections? Not just to put a guard there to keep

         22  the kids safe, but to keep the guard safe?

         23                 MS. MONTGOMERY-COSTA: Well, I would

         24  think that, and some of the things that are

         25  expressed to me as the President of Local 372 from
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          2  the guards, is that what happens is their safety is

          3  also at risk. Often times they are spit upon, they

          4  are taunted with automobiles by some of the drivers.

          5  You have some parents who will attack Crossing

          6  Guards. So, we have a real problem, and I just

          7  believe that there should be some kind of way that

          8  the Department of Education and perhaps the Police

          9  Department bring individuals together to understand

         10  that the School Crossing Guards are there for the

         11  safety of the kids in the community, and they have a

         12  set rules and regulations that they must follow to

         13  cross kids safely to make sure that there is no

         14  accidents that take place unnecessarily.

         15                 And that's about all I can think of

         16  at this point, but I just believe that we need more

         17  guards to safely cross kids.

         18                 MR. GARRIDO: Mr. Chairman, if I may?

         19  Also in addition to the number of guards that are

         20  needed, and there seems to be some discrepancy

         21  between what the Administration presented earlier

         22  today and the numbers that we have, I think there is

         23  a clear disconnect between the school community and

         24  in a sense with that of the Crossing Guards. The

         25  School Crossing Guards are considered, and are, in
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          2  fact, employees of the Police Department, and while

          3  they're part, and a critical part, of the school

          4  community, there isn't an inclusive process where

          5  for instance the Police Department will address the

          6  school community to PTA meetings to discuss the

          7  importance of Crossing Guards. There is no

          8  communication from the Police Departments to the

          9  parents of the school regarding interception,

         10  regarding stopping at specific stop signs.

         11                 And, so, that communication needs to

         12  be there. There has never been an effort that I have

         13  seen by the Police Department, to reach out to the

         14  individual community groups to discuss the role of

         15  Crossing Guards in the school system. Since they're

         16  considered to be employees of the Police Department,

         17  the Department of Education has always taken the

         18  position they're not our employees. So, it is up to

         19  the Police Department to make that outreach and that

         20  has not happened. And I believe that if that

         21  happened, that that that would improve the

         22  conditions as well.

         23                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE: Good point. My

         24  last question, if there is harassment, as you

         25  mentioned, either by a motorist or a parent or

                                                            82

          1  CIVIL SERVICE AND LABOR AND PUBLIC SAFETY

          2  something like that, are you satisfied with the

          3  assistance that you're given? If a license plate is

          4  taken down or a complaint is made by one of your

          5  agents, would the police take it seriously, or are

          6  there improvements that we could make there too?

          7                 MS. MONTGOMERY-COSTA: There's not

          8  very much done.

          9                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE: If everything is

         10  good, that's fine. If not --

         11                 MS. MONTGOMERY-COSTA: Well, the thing

         12  is they make a report. I don't know that much is

         13  because they're really powerless because they have

         14  no power to, you know, to enforce the law on

         15  motorists that break the law. So, they're pretty

         16  helpless when they're out there. They're out there

         17  and they have to endure these kinds of things. It's

         18  not always a patrol officer nearby that they could

         19  get assistance from.

         20                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE: Are they able

         21  to, let's say there's some sort of reckless

         22  endangerment that goes on, a car speeds through an

         23  intersection or blows a light, are they able to, I

         24  know they can't make an arrest, but do they take a

         25  license plate down, work with the police to catch
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          2  that person?

          3                 MS. MONTGOMERY-COSTA: Yes. Yes,

          4  absolutely.

          5                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE: All right.

          6                 MONTGOMERY-COSTA: They're trained to

          7  do that.

          8                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE: Good. Good.

          9                 MR. GARRIDO: Mr. Chairman, if I may?

         10  I think there is a point here that was raised

         11  previously by both Council Member Vacca and Mr.

         12  Chairman Vallone, in reference to the assignment of

         13  Crossing Guards.

         14                 One of the problems that I see in

         15  this process is that the determination of the number

         16  of Crossing Guards, for instance, for the summer

         17  months, is entirely driven by the data that's

         18  produced by the Department of Education regarding

         19  the number of schools that will be open.

         20                 The problem is, is that during the

         21  summer, while the kids are not in school, many of

         22  the kids are not in school, we provide in this City

         23  universal school feeding, for the last two summers,

         24  over 1 million children have been fed through the

         25  school systems, because they're entitled to receive
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          2  free meals from the age of zero to the age of 18.

          3  And what happens is that the number of Crossing

          4  Guards assigned for the summer, which this past year

          5  was 580, was derived by the number of schools open

          6  for summer school, not by the number of schools open

          7  by feeding sites, and while the kids are not school

          8  -- while they're not taking instruction, it doesn't

          9  mean that they're not in school. The universal

         10  school feeding systems that they have now allow

         11  children of that age to eat, whether they're in

         12  school age at this time. So, you have kids way below

         13  four years old that are attending to school to

         14  consume the meals through the summer school feeding

         15  program and they're not accounted at all when the

         16  determination is made, as far as the number of

         17  School Crossing Guards assigned for the summer.

         18                 In addition, the Chairman raised the

         19  issue of cost for School Crossing Guards that in my

         20  opinion will go far to deal with the issue of

         21  retentions that we have. And you mentioned the

         22  concept of having a full-time Crossing Guard, so I

         23  think the concept of annualization is one that will

         24  go far, as I said, to the issue of recruitment.

         25                 While the cost of hospitalization, we
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          2  estimate, would be about a million and a half for

          3  all the Crossing Guards, since the City has to pay a

          4  portion anyway, we believe that that cost will be

          5  far less because the School Crossing Guards have to

          6  go to unemployment, they receive unemployment

          7  benefits, the City has to pay for the unemployment

          8  benefits, and the Crossing Guards are not on site.

          9  So, the true cost, while our estimate is about a

         10  million and a half, we believe would be

         11  significantly less, number one, if you addressed the

         12  issue of assigning Crossing Guards, not only based

         13  on the number of students that are assigned to

         14  participate in the summer, but to the true number of

         15  the school feeding program; and number two, if you

         16  take into consideration the amount of money the City

         17  has to pay for unemployment for those School

         18  Crossing Guards that are not assigned to work during

         19  the summer.

         20                 CHAIRPERSON ADDABBO: It is a good

         21  point, and it is something that we will consider

         22  after this hearing.

         23                 Questions from Council Member

         24  Jackson.

         25                 COUNCIL MEMBER JACKSON: Thank you,
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          2  Mr. Co-Chairs.

          3                 Good morning, Madam President.

          4                 MS. MONTGOMERY-COSTA: Good morning.

          5                 COUNCIL MEMBER JACKSON: How are you?

          6                 MS. MONTGOMERY-COSTA: How are you,

          7  Councilman?

          8                 COUNCIL MEMBER JACKSON: Good to see

          9  you. Let me just say, which my colleagues expressed,

         10  let me just thank you and all of the employees of

         11  Local 372, and especially the ones that we're

         12  focusing in on today, the School Crossing Guards.

         13                 In fact this morning, you know, I'm

         14  training for the New York City Marathon, and I run

         15  in my neighborhood and about by I think 7:00 in the

         16  morning, or somewhere around that time, I see a

         17  School Crossing Guard in front of Public School 173,

         18  which is on 173rd Street and Fort Washington Avenue.

         19  And every morning I'm out there running I see her

         20  out there, as you said, no matter what weather it

         21  is, whether it is raining or it's nice outside or

         22  all types of weather.

         23                 I had a couple of questions but I was

         24  sitting here listening to the questions and

         25  responses, and when you talk about there was a child

                                                            87

          1  CIVIL SERVICE AND LABOR AND PUBLIC SAFETY

          2  that was hit in St. Albans, Queens, I reflect back

          3  to myself as a young four-year-old or five-year-old

          4  little boy, going to school with my sister, and when

          5  we lived on 128th Street, between Second and Third

          6  Avenue, and I was attending going to school, a

          7  public school about three blocks away, I think was

          8  126th Street, between Second and Third Avenue, one

          9  morning and I was hit by a car myself, and

         10  hospitalized for approximately two weeks with

         11  internal bleeding and what have you and so forth.

         12  And subsequent, that was going fast in my mind, I

         13  was put in a class, a special needs class in

         14  elementary school for the fourth grade, and I truly

         15  believe that all of that process was as a result of

         16  the automobile accident that I was in. And knock on

         17  wood, that I think that I'm 100 percent today, but

         18  you never know, I could have been a rocket scientist

         19  if I wasn't hit by a car.

         20                 And I'm serious, because, you know,

         21  the effects on the individuals and families could be

         22  felt, you know, for the temporary period of when

         23  someone is hospitalized, it could be felt for years,

         24  it could be felt for the rest of their lives,

         25  depending on the injury. Possibly take a life.
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          2                 And, so, listening to the testimony,

          3  even though I arrived late, listening to your

          4  testimony, it clearly shows that in essence because

          5  in my opinion, these there's in my opinion, these

          6  are my words based on what I've heard, a lack of

          7  coordination, a lack of priority, that the numbers

          8  that are needed are not being filled, the salaries

          9  that are needed are not being met, and the respect

         10  that is given is not being given, and even though no

         11  one has raised the issue of respect but I'm saying

         12  that, I think that, and I hate to say this, but when

         13  you look at it, when you look at who the Crossing

         14  Guards are, the majority of them are all women and

         15  at least in my opinion, a majority of them are women

         16  of color. And I hope, I hope that that does not have

         17  an impact on DOE and NYPD focusing on what the needs

         18  are.

         19                 But I just wanted to say with respect

         20  to, I do not believe, and I read your statement, you

         21  said each and every year we had to appeal to the

         22  City Council to rectify a Mayor's budget which

         23  failed to fulfill it's responsibility to our 1.1

         24  million school children. I mean, as my colleague

         25  Peter Vallone, Jr. said, we have a $59 billion
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          2  budget, and in fact you know we had a surplus of

          3  over $5 billion this year. Now, I cannot blame Mayor

          4  Bloomberg and us wanting to deal with some of the

          5  issues  that we have to deal with that are coming

          6  up; for example, paying for future health expenses,

          7  what have you and so forth, of retirees. I mean,

          8  that's good, but clearly I think that we have to

          9  meet the needs that have to be met today also.

         10                 And I'm concerned about where in the

         11  Mayor's Office is not looking at what the real needs

         12  are of the budget, saying to themselves, no, we

         13  don't have to worry about it, the City Council will

         14  put the money in, they say that, and they've said

         15  that for the past 20 years when it comes to

         16  teachers' choice. You know what teachers' choice is.

         17  Teachers are given approximately 200-250 dollars a

         18  year in order to purchase school materials that they

         19  need. You know, it's a shame that we, as members of

         20  the City Council, have to put that in the budget for

         21  the past 20 odd years, rather than the Mayor putting

         22  it in his budget, because that's really what the

         23  needs are of teachers. And the same thing, it's a

         24  shame that you were here today talking about this

         25  issue when, as you indicated, the number of School
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          2  Crossing Guards are less in '07 and '08 than they

          3  were in '06 and '07.

          4                 And I looked at your attachments, and

          5  I know that Henry is an excellent analysis on all

          6  the material, going back to when we were dealing

          7  with him in contracts, and the white papers that you

          8  were producing, but Community Board 12 in Manhattan,

          9  it says they were asking that cell phones be

         10  provided to School Crossing Guards to allow them

         11  greater communication to local schools, police

         12  precincts, 9-1-1 and the City's 3-1-1 system and

         13  enhanced public safety for the thousands of children

         14  in the Washington Heights and Inwood area. And the

         15  response was the agency has not submitted a proposal

         16  to increase the funding for this project, therefore,

         17  OMB, the Office of Management and Budget, does not

         18  take any position.

         19                 Now, what Council District it

         20  affects, Council District 7, and Council District

         21  10, and that's in -- Council District 7 is my

         22  Council district, and Council Member Martinez has

         23  Council District 10. Do you know what's in

         24  Washington Heights? The GWB, where tends of

         25  thousands of trucks and vehicles come across every
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          2  morning and go about south and north, down Broadway

          3  and head to every evening, and many of our children

          4  must cross Broadway and Fort Washington Avenue and

          5  the major thoroughfares and Autobahn Avenue in order

          6  to get to their schools.

          7                 So, I am not happy about that, and

          8  let me just say to you that I will work with my

          9  colleagues in which you and the other officers of

         10  your union in order to try to rectify this

         11  situation.

         12                 So, I want to thank you, but I'll

         13  also say that I'll ask you and your members, because

         14  they are part of the school community in which they

         15  serve, whether it's PS 173 or PSIS 187, where my

         16  children went. They should raise this at School

         17  Leadership Team meetings so that that becomes an

         18  agenda item, and subsequently for CEC meetings, the

         19  Community Education Councils, so that it can become

         20  a project not only, and I'm looking in Manhattan

         21  here, there were only two community boards in

         22  Manhattan that raised this as an issue, Community

         23  Board 12 and Community Board 1, downtown here, which

         24  is Alan Gerson's district. So, I want to thank you

         25  and thank the Co-chairs for having this hearing on
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          2  focusing on School Crossing Guards and School Safety

          3  Agents, as far as recruitment and retention. Thank

          4  you very much.

          5                 CHAIRPERSON ADDABBO: Thank you,

          6  Council Member Jackson.

          7                 Ms. Costa, again, I want to thank you

          8  for being here and your team, but again also -- I'll

          9  hold that thanks for one second, we have Council

         10  Member Vacca.

         11                 COUNCIL MEMBER VACCA: I'm sorry,

         12  Chairman Addabbo. Just very quickly, I do want to

         13  know that the Bronx is minus 160, more than in any

         14  other borough, number one, and I think that's scary.

         15                 Number two, I did want to note that

         16  after Grade 2, children do not get bus service, if

         17  they live less than a mile from their homes. We're

         18  talking about third graders crossing, you mentioned

         19  White Plains Road, we in the Bronx are divided by

         20  expressways and highways and service roads that I'm

         21  sure it's true in other boroughs, but the thought of

         22  a third grader not having crossing guards to assist

         23  as they walk home, even within that half mile radius

         24  is scary.

         25                 And the last thing I tell you, and I
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          2  appreciate your testimony, and I certainly am

          3  supportive, but when the police officials were here

          4  before, you may have heard me speak about St.

          5  Benedicts and I mentioned other situations, and when

          6  I went back to give the, my specific information,

          7  they basically are going to take back to my police

          8  captain the information that I provided. I said to

          9  them you are putting my police captain in a

         10  situation where he's going to have to rob Peter to

         11  pay Paul, because if now he gives additional

         12  Crossing Guards to St. Benedicts, he's going to say,

         13  well, I have to take them from somewhere, because we

         14  don't have additional Crossing Guards coming down

         15  the pike from the City, so, therefore -- and my

         16  response was that I anticipated that response and I

         17  told them I don't want to rob from Peter to pay

         18  Paul. We're looking for a net increase in guards. We

         19  want additional locations covered based on need that

         20  we can document.

         21                 MS. MONTGOMERY-COSTA: That's right.

         22                 COUNCIL MEMBER VACCA: So this is

         23  where we're at, and I very much appreciate what

         24  you're doing to highlight the issue, and believe me,

         25  in the communities we do know, sometimes -- and I
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          2  was a community board district manager before I came

          3  here, but sometimes the community boards make

          4  requests to OMB that just amount to paper upon paper

          5  upon paper. I'm glad you highlighted some of that,

          6  because at least someone is seeing that there is a

          7  community request, and that now this hearing, due to

          8  Chairman Vallone and Chairman Addabbo, is bringing

          9  out many of the concerns that many of us have had

         10  for a long time. Thank you.

         11                 MS. MONTGOMERY-COSTA: Thank you.

         12                 CHAIRPERSON ADDABBO: Thank you,

         13  Council Member Vacca.

         14                 Again, Ms. Costa, I want to again

         15  thank you for being here.

         16                 MS. MONTGOMERY-COSTA: Thank you.

         17                 CHAIRPERSON ADDABBO: But also again

         18  to members, to thank them for their hard work and

         19  dedication, and we're hoping that this Committee

         20  hearing is a positive step forward in changing some,

         21  making some positive changes for the workers. So,

         22  thank you very much.

         23                 MS. MONTGOMERY-COSTA: Thank you.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON ADDABBO: Thank you.

         25                 Our next panel is Mr. Gregory Floyd,
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          2  from Teamsters Local 237, representing the School

          3  Safety Agents.

          4                 And can I hear if there is any School

          5  Safety Agents in the audience? I thought so. Again,

          6  we thank you personally for being here, and, again,

          7  for the work you do in our schools in making sure

          8  that not only the students, but authorized persons

          9  in the school safe. So, we thank you for your work

         10  throughout the City. Thank you.

         11                 Mr. Floyd.

         12                 MR. FLOYD: Good morning.

         13                 CHAIRPERSON ADDABBO: Good to see you

         14  again.

         15                 MR. FLOYD: Good to see you also.

         16                 CHAIRPERSON ADDABBO: Mr. Striker,

         17  good to see you again.

         18                 Please give your testimony.

         19                 MR. FLOYD: Good morning. First of

         20  all, we would like to thank you, Councilman Addabbo,

         21  and the Civil Service Committee and also you,

         22  Councilman Peter Vallone, and the Public Safety

         23  Committee, for holding this joint hearing.

         24                 I speak today on behalf of the 4,300

         25  plus NYPD School Safety Agents represented by Local
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          2  237. I thank the Committee for having this important

          3  hearing. The topic of these hearings, "Retention of

          4  School Safety Personnel," is crucial to our City. In

          5  recent months there has been a heated debate over

          6  school safety and the quality of the protection our

          7  force provides the school children of New York City.

          8                 The New York City Chancellor's own

          9  statistics show 20 percent of the students fear for

         10  their safety. This is an unacceptable result. In

         11  this setting, some have criticized school safety

         12  performance. I, and Local 237, contend our members

         13  do a superb job under difficult circumstances, but I

         14  assume everyone agrees that retention of experienced

         15  agents is a problem that must be addressed to make

         16  schools safe.

         17                 The problem is in fact a crisis. As

         18  School Safety Chief James Secreto revealed to the

         19  City last week, some 40 School Safety Agents leave

         20  the force every month, producing a loss of as many

         21  as 500 agents per year.

         22                 A senior graduating from New York

         23  City public school has likely seen 60 percent of

         24  School Safety Agents around him vanish during his

         25  high school career. This is a bad result. It is
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          2  simple, common sense that agents who become

          3  familiar, known faces to youngsters through their

          4  school years acquire respect from students and

          5  personal relationships with them that is productive

          6  of order in schools and irreplaceable. We might say

          7  School Safety Agents fulfill the old neighborhood

          8  function of the adults on the block who come to

          9  watch out for one another's children. Due to the

         10  departure of hundreds of School Safety Agents

         11  annually, this protective function of School Safety

         12  Agents is breaking down.

         13                 Apart from the consequences for any

         14  one school, the loss of skills from the force

         15  through departure of experienced personnel is

         16  devastating. As with any form of police patrol work,

         17  School Safety veterans have picked up skills of

         18  observation, detection and negotiation not available

         19  to them on the first day of the job. New York City

         20  can't afford to lose these skills of hundreds of

         21  experienced School Safety Agents through annual

         22  oddyssey of the Department of Corrections primarily

         23  and other law enforcement jobs.

         24                 Why do School Safety Agents leave?

         25  The bottom line is money. As Chief Secreto points
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          2  out, School Safety Agents are by far the lowest-paid

          3  special police force of New York City. Our exhibit

          4  shows Special Officers who guard New York City's

          5  office buildings, hospitals, juvenile justice

          6  facilities and homeless shelters are paid at an

          7  incumbent rate fully 20 percent higher than School

          8  Safety Agents. Even so-called School Safety Agent

          9  Level 3's, men and women that function as Sergeants,

         10  with significant supervisory responsibilities, are

         11  paid some $4,000 less than Special Officers.

         12                 Local 237 does not by any means

         13  depreciate the bravery and professionalism of our

         14  Special Officers. In fact, these capable men and

         15  women are our members, as well. We simply contend

         16  that protection of our City's children, our future,

         17  is no less important than a function of police work

         18  at other public facilities policed by our members.

         19  Once again, I can't imagine any principled

         20  disagreement with this statement.

         21                 The unfairness of School Safety

         22  Agents lower pay rate is more obvious in light of

         23  recent developments. As the result of Local 237's

         24  campaigning with the assistance of this Committee,

         25  School Safety in the past year, in this last past
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          2  year, has become a competitive Civil Service title.

          3  Now agents must qualify for the force through the

          4  same system of written examinations taken by Special

          5  Officers. Presenting the same qualifications for

          6  hire, and performing equally challenging police

          7  work, School Safety Agents deserve the same final

          8  incumbent pay status as Special Officers.

          9                 Accordingly, Local 237 calls on the

         10  Council, the Mayor and Office of Labor Relations to

         11  take necessary steps to bring School Safety's

         12  incumbent pay schedules in line with their fellow

         13  law enforcement officers, New York City's Special

         14  Officers.

         15                 The expense associated with this pay

         16  upgrade is not great in light of the important

         17  stakes involved. Indeed, it may be mitigated

         18  entirely by the savings that result from retention.

         19  Currently, New York City Police Department incurs an

         20  exorbitant annual expense of training 500 new agents

         21  to replace those departed. Agents through two months

         22  of training on payroll. Instructors, facilities and

         23  other components of training also require money.

         24  These thousands of dollars in training costs for

         25  each new School Safety Agent are thrown away each

                                                            100

          1  CIVIL SERVICE AND LABOR AND PUBLIC SAFETY

          2  time an Agent is forced to abandon his or her job

          3  for more lucrative opportunities elsewhere.

          4  Significant improvements in retention would

          5  eliminate these costs.

          6                 In any event, costs alone should not

          7  deter action to retain School Safety Agents.

          8  Problems associated with School Safety have been

          9  subject of heated debates for months. Councilmen,

         10  parents and our members have all expressed concerns

         11  over trends in our schools, especially the perceived

         12  lack of safety. There can be no dispute that

         13  improved morale, professionalism and retention of

         14  School Safety Agents will contribute to solving the

         15  problems that have been addressed.

         16                 The way to improved morale and

         17  retention is through pay increases for our

         18  hard-working force. The time is now.

         19                 Thank you.

         20                 CHAIRPERSON ADDABBO: Thank you, Mr.

         21  Floyd. And, again, thank you for being here, as well

         22  as for your members and the work that they do in the

         23  City. A question I had asked earlier of the previous

         24  panel, your involvement with what is done to your

         25  members, as far as their workplace environment,
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          2  recruitment, retention, placement, are you involved

          3  in the conversation as well? Are you part of the

          4  formula when DOE, NYPD, gets to the table and they

          5  talk about School Safety Agents?

          6                 MR. FLOYD: The union is not involved

          7  in that formula. When the NYPD and the Department of

          8  Education get together, they get together this

          9  Administration, and we rarely hear, one, about the

         10  conversations in meetings; and two, about what

         11  they're going to come up with. Most of the times,

         12  unfortunately, we read things in the paper and then

         13  we have to call the agencies to find out what's

         14  going on. So, they're not forthcoming with any new

         15  measures that they want to undertake.

         16                 CHAIRPERSON ADDABBO: And I'm going to

         17  guess here, but I think I know the answer. You would

         18  want to be part of that formula, correct?

         19                 MR. FLOYD: Of course we want to be

         20  part of the formula. We think we have a lot that we

         21  can add to the equation.

         22                 CHAIRPERSON ADDABBO: Aside from the

         23  low salary, which we have identified as, and, again,

         24  one of the main reasons for retention and

         25  recruitment as well, other benefits that you don't
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          2  get currently that possibly we could work on in the

          3  future, I know one of, and, again, under the

          4  umbrella of benefits is the vests, and, again, I'd

          5  like to work on that as we go forward after today,

          6  but are there any benefits your members are

          7  currently not getting that possibly we can hopefully

          8  fight for?

          9                 MR. FLOYD: Yes. There were two. There

         10  were two. One is, when the School Safety Agents are

         11  injured, and we had seen something last week, and I

         12  made the statement that no one comes to work to get

         13  hurt, and Councilman Jackson had asked me the

         14  question, the School Safety Agents use their time

         15  until compensation, I would say, covers them. But

         16  they have to use most of their time when they're

         17  injured. And if they want to go on vacation, if an

         18  injury occurs, that wipes out their time, and they

         19  can't go on vacation until compensation restores

         20  their time back, and usually this process is a two-

         21  or three-year process to get the time restored.

         22                 The second thing is something that's

         23  minuscule and something we've been trying to get

         24  this passed for I would say at least four years.

         25  It's a three-quarter disability pension bill for
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          2  those peace officers, which School Safety is a part

          3  of that, that have been injured in the line of duty

          4  and is subject to review but they can no longer

          5  work, because the current pay status for that person

          6  would be one-third pay and we don't have a lot of

          7  School Safety Agents being injured permanently,

          8  however, for those who are injured permanently, we

          9  really would like to see three-quarters disability

         10  paid for those individuals, and that would be

         11  another benefit that we would like to see going in

         12  the future.

         13                 CHAIRPERSON ADDABBO: Are other City

         14  employees who do a similar job, or similarly

         15  classified, getting the three quarters?

         16                 MR. FLOYD: I would say yes. We're

         17  talking about law enforcement physical work. You

         18  have the Police Department, you also have

         19  Corrections, Fire, EMT.

         20                 CHAIRPERSON ADDABBO: Thank you very

         21  much.  That is helpful as we go forward.

         22                 We have questions from Chairman

         23  Vallone.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE: Thank you, Mr.

         25  Floyd. Your members should know how closely you've
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          2  worked with us, and the job you did, not just today

          3  but last week when we had the other hearing.

          4                 MR. FLOYD: Thank you.

          5                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE: Which was a

          6  jam-packed room, more packed than today. Cameras

          7  lined up the whole side of the wall and it was about

          8  as many of you read, the interplay between School

          9  Safety Agents and DOE personnel, such as principals.

         10  And you were there, obviously, and you helped us

         11  prepared, and one of the things we told the DOE and

         12  the Police Department who were both here testifying

         13  is that, well I specifically told them, I said I

         14  wanted a written protocol in place as to the

         15  relationship that exists and who specifically is in

         16  charge, and what the procedure is in any situations.

         17  As you know, they said School Safety Agents are in

         18  charge if there is a crime, which I 100 percent

         19  agree with. But I said that's not good enough. They

         20  said a crime occurs when an injury occurs, and I

         21  said not true. I'm a former prosecutor, that's one

         22  example of a crime, but there are many others, there

         23  are attempted assaults, there are harassment, there

         24  are different crimes. And who makes that

         25  determination? We need it in writing. Our School
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          2  Safety Agents should not be out there without a

          3  playbook and then being held accountable for actions

          4  they take if they don't have anything in writing

          5  telling them what to do. It should be very clearly

          6  written, and I'm going to work to make sure that

          7  that's a reality, hopefully. It happened we held

          8  hearings with the Public Safety Committee regarding

          9  emergency responders, Police, Fire, when they go to

         10  a scene what happens? It was very confusing. And we

         11  asked the City to do it, and they did it, they came

         12  up with a written protocol, and we hope they do it

         13  here too.

         14                 I would assume that you -- do you

         15  have anything to add on that topic that we didn't

         16  get to discuss too fully last time regarding the

         17  protocol and --

         18                 MR. FLOYD: One thing I would have

         19  made a point, when the argument was that two kids

         20  are fighting who makes the determination; well,

         21  often times when people fight the individuals

         22  involved may make a determination, because if one

         23  person wants to press charges, that's how you would

         24  proceed. If one parent came up and said, you know

         25  what? I want that kid arrested because this is what
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          2  they did to my child, that's how you would perceive.

          3  So, it's not always a question of the school or the

          4  school safety making the call. We have individuals

          5  involved, sometimes they press the charges, which

          6  forces people to make decisions of that nature.

          7                 So, I just wanted to say that that

          8  component wasn't stressed by either DOE, the

          9  Principals Union, no one made that point. We could

         10  say something, but unless you're really involved in

         11  the incident, sometimes it's not anyone's call

         12  involved, I mean anyone outside the incident, it's

         13  just the people involved in the incident to make the

         14  decision.

         15                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE: It's a very good

         16  point. If it's an assault on your agent, you're

         17  making the decision. If it's not, it's not your

         18  decision and that should be delineated clearly as to

         19  what happens in that situation and whether or not

         20  you have an obligation. If there was an assault that

         21  was clearly one person's fault that was maybe

         22  witnessed by one of your members; does that mean

         23  it's a crime if a person doesn't want to press

         24  charges? What's the situation? I don't know.

         25                 MR. FLOYD: Right.
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE: And it's a much

          3  more complicated situation when they're out there

          4  with people screaming and all sorts of things going

          5  on in the school hallway, and we're sitting in this

          6  kind of an atmosphere and we can't figure it out.

          7                 I'd like to see that happen and we're

          8  going to work with you and my staff --

          9                 MR. FLOYD: Thank you.

         10                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE: -- And Joe's

         11  staff and everyone else to try to get that done.

         12                 You've answered most of the questions

         13  and we've discussed this in detail in the past. You

         14  heard the City testify, though, that they said that

         15  there is no problem, as far as they're concerned,

         16  quoting "...we are fortunate in having a constant

         17  stream of applications for the position of School

         18  Safety Agent with hundreds of resumes on file so

         19  there has been no difficult in recruiting candidates

         20  for the title."

         21                 I happen to point out to them that

         22  they lose 37 a month, but only have 100 people in a

         23  class, but they said that they're ahead of the game

         24  there. You heard what they said.

         25                 MR. FLOYD: Yes.
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE: So how do you

          3  respond to that?

          4                 MR. FLOYD: It's a revolving door. And

          5  I would say to become a School Safety Agent on the

          6  surface, even though it does not pay, what people

          7  have found is they could come in, get the training,

          8  and they move on to other law enforcement jobs. So,

          9  this has become a revolving door, and if you see --

         10  it's like having a team, if it becomes a revolving

         11  door, you will never win a championship, because the

         12  bottom line is, if you don't keep people, you're not

         13  going to make it to the top. Although they are

         14  filling the positions, the quality may not get to

         15  the level it should get to, because it's constantly

         16  changing and you're working with new people and the

         17  continuity is not there.

         18                 We had a group one time leave from

         19  one command, Queens command, they got together and

         20  40 people decided that they were going to move to

         21  Virginia. One person went down, got a job, called

         22  back, 40 people went to Virginia youth centers and

         23  today they live in Virginia. So, I could go down to

         24  Virginia and I could go through there, I could see

         25  our members living comfortably in Virginia with all
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          2  of the training they receive. So, these things are

          3  happening. Now who is losing out? New York City is

          4  losing out because you have experienced people

          5  leaving. And then sometimes things occur because

          6  people don't know how to react to them because

          7  they're new, and this constantly happens.

          8                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE: Very good point.

          9  And we've got two Council members to ask questions,

         10  and I know there are two panels full of School

         11  Safety Officers which we would like to have time to

         12  hear from.

         13                 MR. FLOYD: Yes.

         14                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE: So I'm going to

         15  cut my questions short.

         16                 Council Member Jackson.

         17                 COUNCIL MEMBER JACKSON: Thank you.

         18  President Floyd, good morning.

         19                 MR. FLOYD: Good morning.

         20                 COUNCIL MEMBER JACKSON: Good

         21  afternoon rather.

         22                 MR. FLOYD: Good afternoon.

         23                 COUNCIL MEMBER JACKSON: I know that

         24  the subject of this hearing is recruitment and

         25  retention, and I had to like move around because the
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          2  light, I couldn't see what the salary, you said the

          3  incumbent salary, the SSA Level 1 is 32,500.

          4                 MR. FLOYD: Yes.

          5                 COUNCIL MEMBER JACKSON: That's with

          6  how many years experience?

          7                 MR. FLOYD: That's with all of your

          8  years of experience.

          9                 COUNCIL MEMBER JACKSON: That's your

         10  maximum salary?

         11                 MR. FLOYD: That's the maximum salary.

         12                 COUNCIL MEMBER JACKSON: That's the

         13  max?

         14                 MR. FLOYD: That's the maximum salary.

         15                 COUNCIL MEMBER JACKSON: Not the

         16  beginning salary?

         17                 MR. FLOYD: No, the beginning is 2,800

         18  -- I mean, 28,000, excuse me. About 28,000. After

         19  one year it goes up to that salary, and collective

         20  bargain increases brings it up a little bit more and

         21  that's the salary right there.

         22                 COUNCIL MEMBER JACKSON: So that is

         23  the maximum salary?

         24                 MR. FLOYD: That's the maximum salary.

         25                 COUNCIL MEMBER JACKSON: So, I could
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          2  be working for 15 years --

          3                 MR. FLOYD: Yes.

          4                 COUNCIL MEMBER JACKSON: And let's

          5  assume that the contract says every year a three

          6  percent increase, the overall salary would go up,

          7  increase, but basically that's it?

          8                 MR. FLOYD: That's it.

          9                 COUNCIL MEMBER JACKSON: Overtime?

         10                 MR. FLOYD: That's not including

         11  overtime.

         12                 COUNCIL MEMBER JACKSON: But overtime,

         13  there's a possibility of overtime?

         14                 MR. FLOYD: There's a possibility of

         15  overtime, yes.

         16                 Now, I just want to also add, when I

         17  first started working for Local 237, I came in on a

         18  Special Officer title, I didn't understand why the

         19  School Safety Agents were angry til I picked up the

         20  contract, and they had a contract before going into

         21  the City under the Board of Ed, it was this thick,

         22  as opposed to a contract this thick.

         23                 COUNCIL MEMBER JACKSON: You mean that

         24  thin?

         25                 MR. FLOYD: This thin. That thin, as
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          2  opposed to a contract. Now they enjoy a better

          3  contract because they've been placed into the City,

          4  but they haven't been placed into the salary

          5  structure.

          6                 COUNCIL MEMBER JACKSON: Right.

          7                 MR. FLOYD: And that gap is getting

          8  wider, because you know, if you get three percent,

          9  three percent of almost $40,000 is going to be more

         10  than three percent of $32,000, and the gap keeps

         11  getting wider and wider and wider.

         12                 COUNCIL MEMBER JACKSON: Now, with

         13  respects to, I assume you as the new president, but

         14  the previous president and the Executive Board, the

         15  leadership of Local 237 had basically requested a

         16  reclass -- a reallocation of your salary. Because a

         17  reclassification is when your job duties change

         18  also.

         19                 MR. FLOYD: Yes.

         20                 COUNCIL MEMBER JACKSON: And

         21  reallocation is that, you know, maybe you should

         22  take it to another level where the beginning salary

         23  should be 32, 35, going up to 45,000 dollars, that's

         24  a reallocation.

         25                 MR. FLOYD: Yes.

                                                            113

          1  CIVIL SERVICE AND LABOR AND PUBLIC SAFETY

          2                 COUNCIL MEMBER JACKSON: I assume that

          3  your union has requested a reallocation of the

          4  salaries of your offices.

          5                 What has the response been from the

          6  City of New York?

          7                 MR. FLOYD: This is how we requested

          8  the salary to be changed. We requested a one-time

          9  lump sum adjustment, one time, to bring the School

         10  Safety Agents up to the level of Special Officers.

         11  Just a one-time adjustment that would alleviate that

         12  problem, because thereafter the increases would be

         13  on the same level.

         14                 However, the response was pattern

         15  bargaining. And in pattern bargaining, everyone gets

         16  the same percentage.

         17                 COUNCIL MEMBER JACKSON: Right.

         18                 MR. FLOYD: But this City Council, for

         19  the first time when you passed the law to have our

         20  peace officers classified as a uniformed force and

         21  then we went through the courts, we spent about

         22  three or four years in the courts and the courts

         23  finally upheld that, we're now at a level that we

         24  could negotiate separately, but we're still going to

         25  have to find out if the City is going to do that or
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          2  we have to go to court over that. If we're allowed

          3  to just make a one-time adjustment for this title, I

          4  think we can alleviate that problem and move on and

          5  go into the future.

          6                 COUNCIL MEMBER JACKSON: Well, I have

          7  heard the City say pattern bargaining, and let me

          8  just say, I don't agree with that. But one thing is

          9  pattern bargaining, another thing is to first bring

         10  people up to par, so that when you're pattern

         11  bargaining, at least people can say, well that's

         12  fine because we're at the level. What I'm hearing

         13  you saying, that your officers, the agents are not

         14  at the level where they should be.

         15                 MR. FLOYD: No. Not at all.

         16                 COUNCIL MEMBER JACKSON: Now, the

         17  Special Officers that you mention here, DJJ is what,

         18  Department of Juvenile Justice?

         19                 MR. FLOYD: Juvenile Justice, Health

         20  and Hospital Corporation, Human Resource

         21  Administration.

         22                 COUNCIL MEMBER JACKSON: And HRA.

         23                 MR. FLOYD: HRA, yes.

         24                 COUNCIL MEMBER JACKSON: Now, when you

         25  say Harlem Hospital --
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          2                 MR. FLOYD: The hospital police.

          3                 COUNCIL MEMBER JACKSON: Okay.

          4                 MR. FLOYD: Yes, they're Special

          5  Officers.

          6                 COUNCIL MEMBER JACKSON: Those are the

          7  individuals you're talking about?

          8                 MR. FLOYD: Yes.

          9                 COUNCIL MEMBER JACKSON: They don't

         10  carry guns, right?

         11                 MR. FLOYD: No.

         12                 COUNCIL MEMBER JACKSON: But they have

         13  a uniform just like your agents?

         14                 MR. FLOYD: Just like the agents,

         15  peace officers, you're comparing apples to apples.

         16  We didn't say Corrections, because then you go into

         17  a different function. We stayed with our job

         18  classification, and the pay scale that these School

         19  Safety Agents should be.

         20                 COUNCIL MEMBER JACKSON: And, so,

         21  every time you raise this with the City's labor

         22  people, their position is this is pattern

         23  bargaining.

         24                 MR. FLOYD: Pattern bargaining.

         25                 COUNCIL MEMBER JACKSON: So, I assume
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          2  that you're going to be pursuing whatever legal

          3  means that you can in order to get your School

          4  Safety Agents reallocated from a salary point of

          5  view to that of the Special Officers; is that

          6  correct?

          7                 MR. FLOYD: Yes. But during the legal

          8  process, you know, it doesn't give us enough

          9  flexibility there. Because these things take years

         10  and there's a chance you could lose and the chance

         11  is not that good, but we say the City has a

         12  responsibility and can alleviate this problem and

         13  we're hearing that if you're able to fund things,

         14  you're able to get contracts.

         15                 Well, we are proposing that we fund

         16  this increase by the retention of School Safety

         17  Agents, rather than keep hiring 500 new School

         18  Safety Agents and training them every year.

         19                 COUNCIL MEMBER JACKSON: Every year.

         20                 MR. FLOYD: There could be a savings

         21  that could be passed along that School Safety Agents

         22  would stay.

         23                 COUNCIL MEMBER JACKSON: Has your

         24  union analyzed a cost factor of -- because you

         25  indicated in your testimony that the primary reason
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          2  that the School Safety Agents are leaving is because

          3  of the low salary.

          4                 MR. FLOYD: Yes.

          5                 COUNCIL MEMBER JACKSON: Has your

          6  union analyzed what it cost, for example, to train

          7  500 new agents every year, what the cost is of the

          8  11.2 percent attrition rate, and I don't even know

          9  if you can quantify this as far as, you know, by

         10  having newer agents you don't have the experience in

         11  order to deal with the situations that have come up

         12  in the field in the school, so maybe if you can

         13  quantify that, what the cost factor is.

         14                 MR. FLOYD: We have quantified it to

         15  about $5,000 for School Safety.

         16                 COUNCIL MEMBER JACKSON: You mean for

         17  cost factor?

         18                 MR. FLOYD: For training.

         19                 COUNCIL MEMBER JACKSON: $5,000.

         20                 MR. FLOYD: $5,000 in training.

         21                 COUNCIL MEMBER JACKSON: Have you

         22  analyzed, and I'm asking the question, if you don't

         23  know, you don't know, I'm just off the top of my

         24  head asking this question.

         25                 Have you reviewed, for example, in
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          2  other municipalities, either in New York's

          3  surrounding areas, let's say Westchester, Rockland

          4  County, Nassau County or Upstate or other cities

          5  like Philadelphia, major cities, what School Safety

          6  Agents earn comparable to, for example, other

          7  special officers? And in essence, to use that as

          8  leverage on the City of New York because your agents

          9  may be, if you compare it to Special Officers?

         10                 MR. FLOYD: In the other cities, the

         11  cost of living is different.

         12                 COUNCIL MEMBER JACKSON: No, I

         13  understand.

         14                 MR. FLOYD: I'm saying they get paid

         15  less but they're able to spend, so the comparison

         16  would have to be to spending.

         17                 I understand what you're saying, yes.

         18                 COUNCIL MEMBER JACKSON: The

         19  comparison would have to be appropriately --

         20                 MR. FLOYD: The cost of living.

         21                 COUNCIL MEMBER JACKSON:  Yes, the

         22  cost of living in New York City area and what have

         23  you and so forth.

         24                 MR. FLOYD: Right.

         25                 I do want to say, there is no School
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          2  Safety force out there like we have in New York

          3  City.

          4                 COUNCIL MEMBER JACKSON: Right.

          5                 MR. FLOYD: There isn't.

          6                 COUNCIL MEMBER JACKSON: Right.

          7                 Now, you had toward the end of your

          8  testimony, you said that there were about 40 School

          9  Safety Agents that left and went down to Virginia.

         10                 MR. FLOYD: Yes.

         11                 COUNCIL MEMBER JACKSON: And

         12  obviously, any time 40 agents say, well, we're just

         13  going to relocate because, one, we can earn more

         14  money or comparable money, and the standard of

         15  living would be better for us and our families, when

         16  did that occur? What year?

         17                 MR. FLOYD: I would say -- I'm trying

         18  to remember, it occurred around, I would say around

         19  2000, the year was 2000, and what happened, somebody

         20  went down there, they were able to get a townhouse

         21  for $400 a month at this time, and they were able to

         22  get at the time, a job working in the Juvenile

         23  Justice Detention Center for about $35,000. And

         24  we're talking about in Year 2000.

         25                 COUNCIL MEMBER JACKSON: Right.
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          2                 MR. FLOYD: So, 35,000 and at the time

          3  School Safety was making about 27,000 and the rent

          4  was $400, actually living in a townhouse, a

          5  three-bedroom townhouse, $400, in the Year 2000. So,

          6  39 other colleagues heard that and they made an

          7  exit.

          8                 COUNCIL MEMBER JACKSON: I'm just

          9  wondering what type of impact did that have on

         10  negotiations when that many officers would just jump

         11  up and leave, because the salaries and the money

         12  that they earn in order to carry out their quality

         13  of life is so poor compared to that location.

         14                 MR. FLOYD: It's interesting because

         15  the Department of Corrections has about 400 of our

         16  members there now that we still keep in contact

         17  with, and they say we never would have left if it

         18  was not for the salary, and they come back to events

         19  and they still consider themselves our members but

         20  they belong to the Department of Corrections.

         21                 So, there is a bond in School Safety,

         22  that once you're a School Safety Agent they say

         23  you're always a School Safety Agent. So, they call

         24  them the "old timers," they have reunions and I see

         25  them all over the City.
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          2                 COUNCIL MEMBER JACKSON: Well,

          3  whatever we can do, as the Co-chairs said, obviously

          4  in my opinion the salary is too low for the work

          5  that is done by your members.

          6                 Now, as you know, we had a hearing,

          7  as Peter Vallone said, last week, on the whole issue

          8  of School Safety and safety in the schools, and you

          9  testified on behalf of your members then, and I

         10  expressed to you what a lot of concerns people had

         11  overall, but we're not here to discuss that today,

         12  that's another subject and I'm happy to see Andrew,

         13  one of your School Safety Agents, he's sitting in

         14  the back and he's a School Safety Agent at PSIS 187

         15  where my kids went to school and I've known him for

         16  years, and the other School Safety Agent Roberta

         17  Manigot, Roberta and I went to high school together

         18  at Benjamin Franklin High School.

         19                 MR. FLOYD: I remember you said that

         20  at the rally.

         21                 COUNCIL MEMBER JACKSON: Because

         22  that's my sister. We go back many, many years. So, I

         23  just know that from my opinion, those two Safety

         24  Agents are like parents to the children up there, as

         25  far as taking care of them, and they've seen all of
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          2  them grow up, that school goes from K to 8, I've

          3  seen them grow up, from little kids all the way up

          4  to teenagers.

          5                 MR. FLOYD: And the years of service

          6  that they've dedicated to become that type of School

          7  Safety Agent, it took years and we have very few

          8  people that stick around and get that experience to

          9  expire to that level, and that's what we're missing,

         10  that's what we're saying we're missing in School

         11  Safety, we're missing those types of School Safety

         12  Agents, because once someone comes in, if they know

         13  they're only going to stay a little while, the

         14  dedication is not there. It's just not there.

         15                 COUNCIL MEMBER JACKSON: So, anything

         16  that we can do to be helpful in your trying to

         17  reallocate the School Safety Agents to the Special

         18  Officers, please let us know.

         19                 MR. FLOYD: Thank you. Just this

         20  forum, just to be able to say that is really a help.

         21  Thank you.

         22                 COUNCIL MEMBER JACKSON: Thank you.

         23                 CHAIRPERSON ADDABBO: Thank you,

         24  Council Member Jackson.

         25                 Council Member Vacca.
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          2                 COUNCIL MEMBER VACCA: I certainly

          3  want to echo my colleague's remarks.

          4                 I wanted to bring up the issue of

          5  retention, and I did last week when Kathleen Grimm

          6  was here in the Education Committee. And I was

          7  alarmed because at that time that was the first time

          8  I had heard what the retention issues were. And you

          9  know, when many people come to the Council, you get

         10  the responses, you're right and we will look into

         11  it.

         12                 MR. FLOYD: Yes.

         13                 COUNCIL MEMBER VACCA: And that's

         14  where it often ends. But I want you to know this is

         15  not going to end there. I want an answer as to what

         16  they're going to do. The salaries you pointed out

         17  are outrageous, and the fact that there is no

         18  increase based on longevity also is outrageous.

         19                 MR. FLOYD: Yes.

         20                 COUNCIL MEMBER VACCA: In fact, you

         21  mentioned training. I can only imagine, and maybe

         22  you want to elaborate, but I can only imagine a

         23  principal who has a security guard that she loves

         24  that she or he has trained insomuch as they're

         25  building is concerned --
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          2                 COUNCIL MEMBER JACKSON: Safety

          3  Agents.

          4                 COUNCIL MEMBER VACCA: Safety Agents.

          5  Not Security Agent, Safety Agent. They have a Safety

          6  Agent that they've trained insomuch as their

          7  building is concerned, who has gotten to know

          8  children, gotten to know exits, gotten to know

          9  cafeteria, yard, portable buildings, and that

         10  principal basically being told in November or

         11  February that they are moving on to the Department

         12  of Correction or wherever else; what happens when

         13  that happens? What is the reaction of principals out

         14  in the schools when they lose their safety people?

         15                 MR. FLOYD: Well, I haven't heard the

         16  reaction, but you and I could both just imagine that

         17  that is not a very pleasant feeling, that knowing

         18  that you have a person and you can't keep them. And

         19  I always relate things to teams, and if you look at

         20  all small market teams, they can't afford to keep

         21  their stars, they see their stars go on to the other

         22  teams, the bigger markets, that's the same process,

         23  and you see stars flourish in the other markets. New

         24  York City, the New York teams are full of stars that

         25  came from other teams that would never have come
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          2  here if it were not for the money. They would have

          3  stayed where they were.

          4                 COUNCIL MEMBER VACCA: Well, my point

          5  to you now is that principals are empowered. And

          6  principals can be an important ally to you, insomuch

          7  as telling the Department of Education that what's

          8  impacting the operation of my school is the lack of

          9  continuity and stability in our Safety Agents

         10  staying in place.  After we've gotten to know them

         11  and appreciate what they do we get someone else. I

         12  think they can be an important ally.

         13                 MR. FLOYD: Okay.

         14                 COUNCIL MEMBER VACCA: We will be

         15  allies, too, of course, because this is outrageous.

         16  I mention that to you. Let me ask the question. The

         17  average elementary school has how many School Safety

         18  Agents?

         19                 MR. FLOYD: Sometimes none.

         20                 COUNCIL MEMBER VACCA: Sometimes none?

         21                 MR. FLOYD: Most times one.

         22                 COUNCIL MEMBER VACCA: Do we have

         23  elementary schools with no agents?

         24                 MR. FLOYD: Yes. I don't know where

         25  they are but I know there are elementary schools
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          2  with no agents.

          3                 COUNCIL MEMBER VACCA: I would like to

          4  know.

          5                 MR. FLOYD: Okay.

          6                 COUNCIL MEMBER VACCA: Some have one?

          7                 MR. FLOYD: One. Most have one. Most

          8  have one.

          9                 COUNCIL MEMBER VACCA: Some have two?

         10                 MR. FLOYD: It's rare but some do.

         11                 COUNCIL MEMBER VACCA: Intermediate

         12  schools.

         13                 MR. FLOYD: Between three and maybe

         14  six, depending on maybe the school's needs.

         15                 COUNCIL MEMBER VACCA: High schools.

         16                 MR. FLOYD: It could be from six up to

         17  30 or 40, as much as 50, depending on the school.

         18  And the level of crime.

         19                 COUNCIL MEMBER VACCA: You see, my

         20  knowledge is that in a K to 5 school your people are

         21  basically a second family to many of the children.

         22  They get to know every child, issues impacting on

         23  every child. And the children feel comfortable with

         24  them. But at the intermediate and high school level,

         25  the challenges become more challenging, I'll put it
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          2  that way.

          3                 MR. FLOYD: Yes.

          4                 COUNCIL MEMBER VACCA: We have high

          5  schools with 19 exits. We have high schools who

          6  allow their children to go out to lunch and then

          7  come back. These are 4,500 children high schools,

          8  coming in and out for five lunch periods a day.

          9                 MR. FLOYD: You're familiar with

         10  Kennedy.

         11                 COUNCIL MEMBER VACCA: And Lehman and

         12  others.

         13                 So, we know the score out there.

         14                 MR. FLOYD: Yes.

         15                 COUNCIL MEMBER VACCA: Many of us know

         16  the score out there, and we depend on you. We don't

         17  want you to leave. We want you to stay. We also want

         18  you to be treated respectfully.

         19                 MR. FLOYD: Yes.

         20                 COUNCIL MEMBER VACCA: And this is not

         21  a respectful treatment of people who I know are

         22  doing a job that has to be done every day.

         23                 MR. FLOYD: Thank you.

         24                 COUNCIL MEMBER VACCA: My last

         25  question, when was your last increase?
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          2                 MR. FLOYD: Our last increase was

          3  April 23rd of this year.

          4                 COUNCIL MEMBER VACCA: What was it, a

          5  COLA?

          6                 MR. FLOYD: It was a five percent

          7  increase.

          8                 COUNCIL MEMBER VACCA: Was that

          9  collective bargaining or COLA?

         10                 MR. FLOYD: It was collective

         11  bargaining. Actually, we had two increases almost

         12  combined simultaneously, because we had two percent

         13  retroactive from October 23rd, and then we had

         14  another five percent for seven percent which was

         15  given right away. Seven percent.

         16                 COUNCIL MEMBER VACCA: Are you part of

         17  the base whereas if collective bargaining agreements

         18  come forth with the City, you are part of that

         19  overall umbrella, you will get whatever was

         20  bargained for with municipal unions, or --

         21                 MR. FLOYD: Yes.

         22                 COUNCIL MEMBER VACCA: So you're part

         23  of that.

         24                 MR. FLOYD: Yes.

         25                 COUNCIL MEMBER VACCA: The problem we
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          2  have is that you're getting those increases, which

          3  the municipal unions have negotiated, and you're

          4  part of that package.

          5                 MR. FLOYD: Yes.

          6                 COUNCIL MEMBER VACCA: But you started

          7  out at such a low base.

          8                 MR. FLOYD: That's correct.

          9                 COUNCIL MEMBER VACCA: And the low

         10  base means that even the increases are not having

         11  any negligible impact.

         12                 MR. FLOYD: That's correct. Because

         13  before this, I believe the salary was 28. So, the

         14  seven percent increase just got us to the 32, and

         15  you know, we get another increase, even if we got

         16  ten percent on 32, you're talking about $3,200. It

         17  still doesn't get you, if the Special Officers

         18  didn't get an increase, it doesn't get you to the

         19  39. We're still $3,000 behind.

         20                 So, that's with a ten percent

         21  increase for one year. And we don't receive a ten

         22  percent increase in one year, so even ten percent

         23  wouldn't get us to that level.

         24                 COUNCIL MEMBER VACCA: All of your

         25  people work year-round?
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          2                 MR. FLOYD: Yes.

          3                 COUNCIL MEMBER VACCA: But for the

          4  summer you may be reassigned to different schools

          5  based on where students are?

          6                 MR. FLOYD: Yes.

          7                 COUNCIL MEMBER VACCA: Okay, I

          8  understand.

          9                 Thank you.

         10                 CHAIRPERSON ADDABBO: Thank you,

         11  Council Member Vacca.

         12                 Again, Mr. Floyd, it's always a

         13  pleasure to have you here and to try and work on

         14  ways to improve the environment for your workers,

         15  and your future workers.

         16                 MR. FLOYD: Thank you.

         17                 CHAIRPERSON ADDABBO: So thank you

         18  again for your time and testimony.

         19                 MR. FLOYD: Thank you very much.

         20                 CHAIRPERSON ADDABBO: Now I understand

         21  we have a number of workers who want to testify.

         22                 MR. FLOYD: Yes.

         23                 CHAIRPERSON ADDABBO: I have them

         24  here.

         25                 MR. FLOYD: Okay.
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON ADDABBO: So what I'm

          3  going to do at this point is I'm going to read them

          4  off, have them come up. Only because we have to

          5  leave this room by 1:00, we're going to ask the

          6  workers to keep their comments brief. We may use a

          7  two-minute period, but we want to hear from everyone

          8  who had signed up. So, again, we look forward to

          9  calling them up now.

         10                 MR. FLOYD: Thank you.

         11                 CHAIRPERSON ADDABBO: But, Mr. Floyd,

         12  Mr. Striker, thank you very much for being here.

         13                 So, here we go, our first panel. And

         14  if I mispronounce your name, please, please forgive

         15  me. Addabbo gets messed up once in awhile, too.

         16                 Tammy Brunson. Derrick Neville. Betty

         17  McGrier. Kevin Gerald, and Cynthia Dodson.

         18                 Again, I want to thank you all for

         19  being here, and as I will thank the next panel,

         20  thank you very much for the work that you do for the

         21  safety of our children, and again, authorized people

         22  in our schools.

         23                 No order, so please just state your

         24  name and give your testimony.

         25                 MR. NEVILLE: Good morning. My name is
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          2  Derrick Neville. I'm a School Safety Agent, Level 3.

          3  I've been on the job 20 years.

          4                 UNIDENTIFIED SPEAKER: Hit the red

          5  button.

          6                 MR. NEVILLE: Good morning. My name is

          7  Derrick Neville. I'm a Level 3 School Safety. I've

          8  been on the job 20 years, 18 as a first line

          9  supervisor. And, you know, I'm a little upset in how

         10  School Safety has been treated, you know, because

         11  being a veteran my heart has been there. I heard a

         12  lot of testimonies this morning and they talk about

         13  the Crossing Guards. We're out there with those

         14  Crossing Guards every morning, we see those kids as

         15  they come in and as they leave. Not only in the

         16  school, our responsibility is so broadened because

         17  we have to deal with dismissals as well, and when we

         18  deal with dismissals, it's not just our kids,

         19  because we have various schools that are in and

         20  around the area and we have train stations with kids

         21  and community. We have to deal with so much and we

         22  are out there just with our minds and our mouths. We

         23  do not have any protection. You know, we have peace

         24  officer status, but when you're out there in the

         25  street and there's a fight and there's thousands of
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          2  kids out there, and we're outnumbered, you know, it

          3  can be devastating. So, most of the kids have a lot

          4  of respect for us.

          5                 I'm also appalled to the fact that as

          6  a Level 3, you can have a newly Level 3 that just

          7  come on the job three years and make the same money

          8  as I make. You know, the incentive is not even

          9  there. You know, that's why we have such a high

         10  turnover rate, because people, you know, we're out

         11  here busting our chops, and we're not respected. You

         12  know, I have to work a second job just to make ends

         13  meet, you know, which takes me away from my family.

         14                 Now, those who have family knows that

         15  you're losing time. I have a daughter here that I

         16  barely see, you know, because I have to work just to

         17  make ends meet, you know? And it's saddening that I

         18  have to put in like two shifts. Come home, I gotta

         19  get back up. When I get home, my family is asleep. I

         20  don't see them, you know. Then when I get to work,

         21  the obstacles that we have to deal with on a

         22  day-to-day basis is just phenomenal. You know, you

         23  talk about stress? You work School Safety. You'll

         24  know stress, okay? You talk about all the other

         25  agencies that do 20? We need to have 20 and out. You
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          2  know, we'd be burnt out.

          3                 One other thing, you know, there's a

          4  saying that says that "the truth is the light," they

          5  need to cut on the light so they can see the truth.

          6  The truth is School Safety needs more money.

          7                 CHAIRPERSON ADDABBO: Thank you, Mr.

          8  Neville.

          9                 Thank you.

         10                 MS. McGRIER: Good afternoon,

         11  everyone. My name is Betty McGrier. I work at MOK

         12  High School (phonetic). I'm a Scanner Agent. My

         13  issue is about scanning. We are underpaid. 17 cents

         14  a day. That's what I'm getting paid to monitor an

         15  x-ray machine, a walk-through, hand-wanding female

         16  students or visitors and we are so underpaid. I want

         17  someone to tell me why. Why am I working hard every

         18  day and no one seems to care about what are we

         19  earning?

         20                 My thing is, we are out there putting

         21  ourself in harm's way, and everyone is telling us

         22  what they're going to do. Don't tell me what you're

         23  going to do, show me what you're going to do. And my

         24  thing is, you have to come and visit and see what we

         25  go through. Not just with the kids itself, we're
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          2  talking about the administrator, we're talking about

          3  the principal. We're there to protect everyone. Who

          4  is protecting us? When a student I say go get

          5  scanned, step over to the table, they get arrogant,

          6  they want to fight. I mean, it's the little things

          7  that people, they don't see it, they overlook it.

          8  And I'm putting myself in harm's way. As I make it

          9  to work, I want to make it home. So, my issue is

         10  safety, money and if you're going to pay me a flat

         11  salary, give me something decent, so when I work

         12  everyday and I go home tired after I put 13 hours

         13  in, because I have to do overtime to make a decent

         14  living, but my issue is after that, if I make over

         15  50,000 doing overtime, I might not have a place to

         16  live, because when I get certified I'm over the

         17  bracket. So, I'm caught in the middle. So, my issue

         18  is housing and scanning. I need a decent salary for

         19  scanning pay. Seventeen cents a day, that's an

         20  embarrassment. That's my issue. And I want someone

         21  to tell me, what are you going to do for me? Put it

         22  in writing. Make it happen. Three percent, that's

         23  not enough. That's not enough.

         24                 Thank you.

         25                 MS. DODSON: My name is Cynthia
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          2  Dodson. I have been working for the Department for

          3  35 years. I'm getting ready to retire. Before I go

          4  out on that salary -- I don't want to, and I don't

          5  think so.

          6                 I have people that work for School

          7  Safety now that I was the agent in the school, and

          8  they're making the same salary that I'm making. And

          9  that's not fair. I want some money.

         10                 MS. BRUNSON: My name is Tammy

         11  Brunson. My name is Tammy Brunson, I work for the

         12  division for 23 years, and I just need you to know

         13  and understand that the cost of living is high but

         14  our salary is low. There is a struggle to pay rent.

         15  There is a struggle for me because I have an 18 year

         16  old in college, and I have a college bill that I'm

         17  responsible to pay, and it's a struggle. When you

         18  work overtime, they want to cap you for the

         19  overtime. They're telling you there's a certain

         20  amount of money you can't make for overtime. How am

         21  I going to make ends meet if I can't make the

         22  overtime to help me pay?

         23                 I know for a fact that with my

         24  experience on the job there are some School Safety

         25  Agents that are homeless because they cannot meet to
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          2  pay their rent.

          3                 Also I am a Level 3, I also know that

          4  the Level 3 responsibility is in high schools, and

          5  then you have the cluster schools, those are the

          6  junior high schools and the elementary schools

          7  around the area, they're responsible for those

          8  schools.

          9                 We're also responsible, not only the

         10  supervisors, School Safety Agents are responsible to

         11  do attendance grids, we're responsible to do

         12  disciplinary actions. Of course you know we make

         13  arrests, we do evaluations on these School Safety

         14  Agents. We just don't stand there in the building.

         15  We are very helpful.

         16                 I've been on this job, like I said,

         17  23 years, and I stuck with the job because I love

         18  the job and I love working with the children, but I

         19  believe that every School Safety Agent need to be

         20  compensated. There need to be a pay scale for the

         21  agents as they enter this job, because it is unfair

         22  for me to be here for 23 years and someone came on

         23  the job a year ago, who was interviewed as a Level

         24  3, making the same salary as me. And, again, just

         25  like Ms. Dodson, there are School Safety Agents that
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          2  are coming into the job who were students when I was

          3  a School Safety Agent there.

          4                 I just want you to know that it's

          5  very important that this is taken into

          6  consideration.

          7                 MR. GERALD: Good afternoon. My name

          8  is Kevin Gerald. I'm a School Safety Agent for 20

          9  years, and I became a School Safety Agent after

         10  being laid off a few blocks from this location. I

         11  worked on Wall Street, and I never looked back

         12  because I love the job.

         13                 I want to ask a parent, what would

         14  they pay for their child's safety? See, I don't want

         15  to say that I could be paid a certain amount, but I

         16  could certainly be compensated more fairly. Because

         17  I'm with people's children, our children, for more

         18  than 180 days a year, for more than 180 days a year.

         19  And whether or not a student had a problem with me a

         20  year ago, ten minutes ago, I am charged and mandated

         21  that if that child has a situation, that I have to

         22  intercede to make sure they don't get hurt or harm

         23  come to them, I have to do that, and I've done that

         24  throughout my career.

         25                 I have been a Level 3 for 14 years,
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          2  and this job is the type of job that if you don't

          3  like what you're doing, you're not going to be here

          4  long.

          5                 You also, as School Safety Agents

          6  many of us donate extra time to school children in

          7  coaching basketball and baseball and martial arts

          8  and the ladies spend time with the females, trying

          9  to make them ladies. So, it's not only the type of

         10  job that we do things and get paid for, we give a

         11  lot of extra stuff to these children that people

         12  just don't understand what we do fully.

         13                 We also need people to understand

         14  that we interact more with the public now more than

         15  ever. I am at a school that is surrounded by housing

         16  projects. I'm at Frederick Douglas Academy, a very

         17  good school now, but I also have to interact in a

         18  community that is heavily drug-related with other

         19  issues that are going, and I have to interact with

         20  that community and become a member of the community

         21  and represent my job so that I can be productive out

         22  there and keep the community safe because I have a

         23  senior citizen facility right near me, Esplanade

         24  Gardens, where many citizens live, and a train

         25  station and a bus stop, and I get so many people
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          2  coming with so many different issues and I still

          3  have to be able to be productive and make sure that

          4  I do my primary purpose, which is make sure that the

          5  kids get home safe, the staff gets home safe and the

          6  property is not destroyed. And one of the other

          7  things, the people that work for me and myself, that

          8  we come home safe and able to report the next day to

          9  provide the same service. And I'd like to thank you,

         10  gentlemen, and the ladies aboard your Council and

         11  your group, that you're going to provide some real

         12  help and some real substance to get us what we need

         13  and fairly compensate us for the job we do, and

         14  we've been doing, the majority of us, for at least

         15  20 years or more in this room. Thank you.

         16                 CHAIRPERSON ADDABBO: Thank you.

         17                 We're going to call up our second

         18  panel and the last one for today. We have Christian

         19  Pines. Teri Ghee. Angelicao Hernandez. Zina Young,

         20  and Candida Rodriguez.

         21                 I want to thank you, again, for being

         22  here, and state your name and give your testimony,

         23  please.

         24                 MS. YOUNG: Good afternoon. My name is

         25  Zina Young. Twenty-seven years of service I work at
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          2  Lewis D. Brandeis High School, which is a scanner

          3  site.

          4                 Scanning is a very sensitive, very

          5  delicate situation. You have a lot of kids. We scan

          6  approximately three- to four-hundred kids within an

          7  hour and forty-five minute time. Most of these kids

          8  don't want to get scanned. They get irate. They get

          9  confrontational. They want to lunge at you. They

         10  want to fight you. We get cursed out but we still

         11  maintain CPR, we're still professional. And the 27

         12  years of service I was caught up in two riots,

         13  knocked into a showcase, a glass showcase, could

         14  have lost my life. Why do I keep coming back?

         15  Because I love the job, I love the kids. But the

         16  salary, it's outrageous. I keep coming back, I get

         17  cursed, I get hurt, I keep coming back, but the

         18  salary that we have now is not helping. It's not

         19  helping my family. I have a son right now in

         20  college, I cannot pay for it. I have to ask my

         21  family to pay for his college, because I cannot and

         22  that's unfair to them, but I'm going to remain in

         23  School Safety because I love the job and I love the

         24  kids. Okay, we're just asking for more money, and

         25  more respect, and for you all to see what we do. We
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          2  just don't sit there, sign people in, we interact

          3  with everybody. Everybody outside, inside, hundreds

          4  of kids. And my school is a very active school, if

          5  anybody knows about Lewis D. Brandeis High School.

          6  Okay? Thank you.

          7                 MS. PINES: Good afternoon. My name is

          8  Krystal Pines. I work in Lewis D. Brandeis High

          9  School as well, which is a scanning school. I don't

         10  know how many of you guys have entered a scanner

         11  school or may have children who are in the public

         12  school system. The job is demanding, physically,

         13  mentally, we do counseling. As she said, we scan

         14  over 400 children within maybe an hour and a half,

         15  hour and 45 minutes. These children are, it's early

         16  in the morning, they're cranky, they have problems

         17  at home. They come in, they're agitated, they're

         18  irate, they want to argue, they want to fight. The

         19  job is demanding. We are their counselor. We do

         20  mediation. We do transport. As far as this child is

         21  threatening me, we have to mediate the situation,

         22  try to make them get to the train station, as well

         23  as the bus stops safely. It's overwhelming. It's a

         24  lot for the pay. I have children of my own. I'm

         25  actually leaving. I've been in School Safety for
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          2  only two years. I am going to Corrections. The pay

          3  is not enough. I have two children of my own to

          4  support. I love the job, I love the children, but

          5  it's just too much and we do not get paid enough. We

          6  don't have the benefits that any of the other City

          7  organizations have. I can't retire after 20 years

          8  and take any of my benefits with me, which is they

          9  offer you in other organizations, such as

         10  Corrections.

         11                 Thank you.

         12                 MS. GHEE: Good afternoon. My name is

         13  Teri Ghee. I've been in School Safety five and a

         14  half years. My main issue is not enough money. I'm a

         15  mother of six children and four of them are under

         16  the age of 12. So, I have a lot of expenses as far

         17  as child care. I spend a lot of time working

         18  overtime so that I can pay for my child care needs

         19  so that I can work. And the only reason why I stay

         20  at the job is because I love my job also, because I

         21  would have then left and went to another agency. I'm

         22  on the list for other agencies, PD, Corrections, but

         23  my heart is here at this job. And the only thing I

         24  ask is that we get more money in our pay to help us

         25  out with our families also. We take care of
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          2  everybody else's children, we need help to provide

          3  for our children also. So, that's my main concern.

          4  Thank you.

          5                 MR. HERNANDEZ: Good afternoon. My

          6  name is Angelico Hernandez. I've been with the

          7  Division of School Safety 35 years. I learned a lot

          8  how to communicate with the kids. I love the kids.

          9  I'm a parent myself, I've got kids in school also.

         10  And I feel that we're getting underpaid, and I'm

         11  also in a response team they call a mobile task

         12  force and will respond to a lot of emergency

         13  situations. People with guns, blades, all kind of

         14  things and sometimes we have to do law enforcement

         15  to make things safe for these kids. We do what they

         16  call "safety corridors." We go down to Broadway

         17  where it works out of Brandeis, we're there for

         18  dismissals, the safety of the kids, the safety of

         19  teachers, and like I said we respond to a lot of

         20  really crazy situations, you know, like a lot of

         21  emergencies and we don't have really a lot of

         22  equipment, when we're responding to a lot of

         23  situations. We're there with a flashlight and a pair

         24  of handcuffs and we're dealing with adults, we're

         25  not dealing with just kids. We've got people to
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          2  intervene and we're trying to do something, you

          3  know, like trying to keep a kid safe, because if

          4  somebody else is doing a lot of bad things, like

          5  really beating them up, and maybe pulling out

          6  something, a weapon on them. And we're doing all

          7  these jobs and nobody knows what we do. They think

          8  we just sit at a desk. And we need more money

          9  because we're not sitting at a desk, we're doing

         10  police work. We're not security guards, like people

         11  think we are. Like I said, I came from the Division

         12  when we were called District Guards, where we just

         13  wear a jacket and sign people in. Our job is no more

         14  a security guard. We're doing law enforcement work

         15  and I think we should get paid for the money (sic).

         16  Like I said, I got kids in public schools, I mean a

         17  Catholic school, and I'm paying a lot of money for

         18  them, you know, and I can't afford it. I can't

         19  afford my rent. And I hope, you know, you guys are

         20  looking into what we're doing and hopefully we'll

         21  get what we want, or part of it, because we deserve

         22  it. Thank you very much.

         23                 MS. RODRIGUEZ: Good afternoon. My

         24  name is Candida Rodriguez. I've been in School

         25  Safety for 32 years. I started with the Cicera
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          2  Program (phonetic) and then when the City took over

          3  we became School Safety. And I work in the middle

          4  school, but I'm also responsible for the three

          5  elementary schools around my way. Two of those

          6  schools also have middle schools that have two

          7  agents in each that I'm responsible for them, and I

          8  do a lot of mediations, when there is a problem I

          9  have a lot of meetings with the principals. And I

         10  tried to meet with the community to see if any

         11  needs, how the kids behave and the entrance or

         12  dismissals of the kids and from all going home. And

         13  my daughter also go to -- all my kids went to public

         14  schools and my daughter right now is in seventh

         15  grade in a middle school around the way, and we

         16  just, you know, especially now after the incident

         17  with the principal and security, we are now seen

         18  like we don't really do anything, but if anybody

         19  follow us through the day, or like if you wear my

         20  shoes then you think about it at the end of the

         21  afternoon, you will see we don't only sit at the

         22  desk. We do scanning, we do mediation, we do

         23  counseling, we are parents to these kids that have

         24  unfunctional -- most of them don't even know where

         25  their father or the mother is, and we try to help
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          2  them with any needs. We volunteer a lot of time with

          3  them. Like I'm Hispanic, in the afternoon, I got

          4  about five kids that I help with Hispanic homework,

          5  and also my daughter helping them with the Latin,

          6  and we're not just there because we want to get

          7  paid, we work there because I like the work. I'm a

          8  mother myself. But my thing is, like doing all this

          9  overtime hours, it's taking away from my daughter

         10  and my kids, because I'm helping somebody else's

         11  kids, well who is helping mine? Because mom is never

         12  there for them. We've got security here that tell me

         13  that the kids are calling them by their first names

         14  because they don't even know who they are no more,

         15  because there are babysitters or after school

         16  centers or grandparents taking care of them because

         17  we have to do what we got to do.

         18                 So, we just want help. You know,

         19  because for you guys, when you go there and you

         20  represent them, explain to them why it's really our

         21  job, and they can understand that we're not just

         22  there as a figure, we're there as a part of the

         23  community, as a part of the school and as a part of

         24  the system. I think we deserve to be recognized.

         25  Thank you.
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON ADDABBO: I want to thank

          3  this panel, and the previous panel, and if I hear

          4  you correctly, and I think I do, a number of you

          5  have said the love for the job and you've got to

          6  admire that. You know, so the love for the job and

          7  the love for the children that you watch out for and

          8  the desire to protect them, but unfortunately the

          9  love and the desire does not pay the bills. And I

         10  hear that. Unfortunately, sometimes the idea of

         11  increasing pay is out of the jurisdiction of the

         12  City Council, it rests with the Mayor ultimately. It

         13  is hopeful that with this hearing we can effectuate

         14  some change, if not in salary, maybe other things

         15  like the vests or the benefits or something else, we

         16  could work on some other issues and hopeful the

         17  salary will effectuate some change somewhere down

         18  the line. But this kind of conversation, you being

         19  here today, your time here is well spent, because

         20  you have just put a face on the problem that exists

         21  for thousands of you. So we appreciate your time

         22  here today, and I do believe it's time well spent,

         23  and we will keep in touch as far as how we proceed,

         24  because now the work really begins. After this

         25  hearing, after I bang the gavel and we end this
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          2  hearing, we roll up our sleeves and now the real

          3  work starts and how do we effectuate some change.

          4                 So, again, I thank you for spending

          5  some time here with us today, and I'd like to be

          6  optimistic that your time here today and the work

          7  that we do will be a positive change somewhere down

          8  the line. So, thank you very much.

          9                 Council Member Vallone.

         10                 CHAIRPERSON VALLONE: Hold on one

         11  second. I just wanted to echo Councilman Addabbo's

         12  words, and as I said, I'm a parent of two little

         13  girls in public school, one in the seventh grade, so

         14  much of this was known to me already, because I see

         15  what you do every day, and there is nothing more

         16  important than the safety of our precious little

         17  angels and that's the noble job that you do every

         18  day.

         19                 So, on behalf of all of the parents,

         20  our Council members, our Committee staff, I just

         21  want to say that we hear you, we respect you and we

         22  thank you. So, thanks for coming down today.

         23                 CHAIRPERSON ADDABBO: Thank you. And

         24  we will encourage our other colleagues to go into

         25  their schools and say hello to their School Safety

                                                            150

          1  CIVIL SERVICE AND LABOR AND PUBLIC SAFETY

          2  Agents and Crossing Guards, and as we again look to

          3  do these changes, to appreciate the job that they do

          4  throughout the City. So, again, we thank you for

          5  being here. This meeting is adjourned.

          6                 (Hearing concluded at 12:56 p.m.)
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